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LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF MANITOBA 
Tuesday, June 20, 1978 

Time: 2:30 p.m. 

OPENING PRAYER by Mr. Speaker. 

MR. SPEAKER, Hon. Harry E. Graham (Birtle-Russell): Before we proceed , I should like to draw 
the honourable members' attent ion to the gallery where we have 150 wives of members of the 
Canadian Medical Associat ion from all across Canada who are in Winnipeg for the Canadian Medical 
Convention. 

We also have 22 students of Grade 10 to 12 standing from the Snow Lake Collegiate under 
the direction of Mr. Pocatello. This school is in the constituency of the Honourable Member for 
Flin Flon. 

We also have 25 students of Grade 10 standing from the Plumas Junior High under the direction 
of Mr. Richardson. This school is in the constituency of the Honourable Member for Gladstone. 

We have 12 students from the Peretz School in Calgary under the direction of Mr. Seldberg. 
They are visiting the Minister of Education in Manitoba. 

We also have 18 students of Grade 4, 5, and 6 standing from Tilston School under the direction 
of Mrs. Halls. This school is in the constituency of the Honourable Minister of Agriculture. 

On behalf of all the honourable members, we welcome you here this afternoon. 
Presenting Petitions . .. Reading and Receiving Petitions. 

PRESENTING REPORTS BY STANDING AND SPECIAL COMMITTEES 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for Pembina. 

MR. DON ORCHARD: Mr. Speaker, I beg to present the first report of the Standing Committee 
on Economic Development. 

MR. CLERK: The Standing Committee on Economic Development met on June 15, 1978, and 
appointed Mr. Orchard as Chairman . Your Committee has agreed that the quorum for all future 
meetings of the Committee shall consist of six members. 

Your committee also met on June 20, 1978, to consider the Annual Report of Manitoba Forestry 
Resources Ltd . for the year ended September 30, 1977. 

Having received all information requested by members of the committee from Leifur J. 
Hallgrimson, Chairman of the Board of Directors of Manitoba Forestry Resources Ltd., the report 
was adopted as presented . 

MR. SPEAKER: Is it the pleasure of the House to adopt the report? (Agreed) 
Ministerial Statements and Tabling of Reports . . . Notices of Motion . . . Introduction of 

Bills. 

ORAL QUESTIONS 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Leader of the Opposition . 

MR. EDWARD SCHREYER (Rossmere): Mr. Speaker, in the absence of the Premier, I would direct 
my question to the Minister responsible for the Emergency Measures Organization, or the Acting 
Minister, and that is to ask whether it can be confirmed that plans are being drawn up at this moment 
with respect to disaster alleviation and clean-up, and also can we be advised whether the estimate 
of damage is such as to bring into play, as to invoke the Federal-Provincial Disasters Alleviation 
Agreement? 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Government House Leader. 

HON. WARNER H. JORGENSON (Morris): In response to the question from the Leader of the 
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may I tell him that the Premier will be in within a few minutes. I think that he is aware of the fact 
that the Premier toured that area this morning and will be wanting to make a statement when he 
arrives. 

Insofar as the question concerning the declaration of a disaster area, I think that the Leader 
of the Opposition is aware that there is certain criteria that will have to be met, and depending 
upon what the circumstances are, determination will be made as to whether or not it can be declared 
a disaster area, but if my honourable friend will wait until the Premier arrives, he will be making 
a statement on that subject. 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Leader of the Opposition . 

MR. SCHREYER: Well , Mr. Speaker, with respect then to the disaster and related problems in the 
area of Aubigny and all of the area that was affected by last evening's storm, I will hold further 
questions for the moment. 

I now ask the Minister of Health if he can indicate whether any plans are under way through 
his department and through the Health Services Commission to deal with the budgetary cutbacks 
and the problems arising therefrom at the Children's Hospital, wherein, according to a bulletin at 
that hospital , it would seem as though certain measures are being undertaken because of budgetary 
cutbacks - It 's right in the bulletin, Sir - resulting in no hot meals, both breakfast and dinner. 
Can the Minister indicate if this measure for the next three months will be continued, or whether 
he will investigate to see whether it is really necessary? 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Minister of Health. 

HON. L. R. (Bud) SHERMAN (Fort Garry): Mr. Speaker, I can assure the Honourable Leader of 
the Opposition that that matter will be investigated. I am aware of some proposed measures having 
to do with the hours of the cafeteria service during summer months, relative not only to visitors 
but to night and overnight staffing patterns in the Health Sciences Centre generally. I am going 
to have to look into the specific question that he raises relative to the Children's Centre. 

I can only say, in addition to that , that I am prepared imminently to study with officials of the 
Manitoba Health Services Commission and hospital officials relevant in each case, the measures 
being undertaken with respect to each hospital budget at this point in time. 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for Fort Rouge. 

MR. LLOYD AXWORTHY: Mr. Speaker, a question to the Minister of Health and Social Development. 
Can he confirm reports that there is presently a major disturbance at Headingley Jail where the 
inmates have gone on strike and are now bargaining or negotiating with department officials to 
improve conditions in that jail? 

MR. SHERMAN: Mr. Speaker, there was a grievance exercise at Headingley yesterday. It was 
referred to in some circles as a sit-down strike; it was not referred to as such by my department. 
The conditions, the situation at the institution are back to normal yesterday. The majority of the 
sentenced population , as distinct from the remand population, refused to carry out their work 
assignments, stayed in their cells while a new inmate council presented a list of grievances and 
discussed those grievances with the administration at Headingley. My information is that the situation 
was back to normal by late last evening and normal routine is being followed and maintained 
today. 

MR. AXWORTHY: A supplementary, Mr. Speaker. Without reverting to the vocabulary used by the 
department, could he indicate if the department intends to take any action to meet the particular 
grievances, and can the Minister outline exactly what those grievances were, and if there is to be 
corrective action taken to respond to them , particularly in view of his statement in the Estimates 
last week that all was well and everything was fine at Headingley Jail? 

MR. SHERMAN: Mr. Speaker, I don't think I made the statement that all was well and everything 
was fine at Headingley Jail. I believe that the Honourable Member for Fort Rouge is confusing my 
remarks and his impression with a newspaper report yesterday which indicated that all was well 
and everything was fine. I have suggested that due to idleness and enforced idleness and lack of 
sufficient programming in the work area that there are potential problems in our institutions, 
Headingley being one of them. I'm on the record as suggesting that. In response to the direct question 
of the honourable member, I would say that I don't feel that either I or my staff should respond 
at this juncture to the grievances raised by the prisoners' committee at Headingley. That is up to 
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the administration of the institution. Some of the grievances may be deemed legitimate; some of 
them may be deemed petty and picayune. The administration at the institution has had some 
experience in this respect. All grievances obviously have to be listened to because of the potential 
danger if one doesn't listen to them, but they don't all have to be met and responded to. 

MR. AXWORTHY: A supplementary then, Mr. Speaker, to the same Minister. In view of the statement 
of the Minister that there are problems in the institutions, and in view of the incident that took 
place last night in the Public Safety Remand Centre, would the Minister now consider implementing 
the request that was made to him during the Estimates debate that a Legislative Committee be 
set and established to inquire into conditions in the provincial jai ls and institutions so that we can 
get a broader based assessment of conditions there and what corrective actions might be taken 
rather than simply relying upon the convoluted vocabulary of department officials. 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Minister of Health . 

MR. SHERMAN: Mr. Speaker, certainly I'd be prepared to consider it; I think it's premature. I think 
that it 's necessary at this point that I, as Minister, with my Deputy Minister and top officials explore 
the very area to which the honourable member refers. The proposal for a Legislative Committee 
to investigate the whole subject is certainly worthy of consideration and will be taken under 
advisement, but I think that my department and my office, and I personally, have a responsibility 
at this juncture that precludes the establishment of such a Committee. I would certainly be happy 
to call upon the Honourable Member for Fort Rouge for help if I need it . 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Leader of the Opposition. 

MR. SCHREYER: Mr. Speaker, to hearken back to the question I asked the Minister of Health with 
respect to the Childrens Hospital, I should like to ask the Minister if he has received as yet a petition 
from the pediatric doctors, resident physicians at the Childrens Hospital, expressing grave concern 
about the deterioration in support services at that Childrens Hospital and among other specifics, 
points to the discontinuation of hot breakfasts and dinners for the summer schedule. 
-(Interjection)- For those at the hospital. 

MR. SHERMAN: No, Mr. Speaker, I have not received such a petition or such an indication, but 
I will investigate on the strength of the question that the Honourable Leader of the Opposition raises. 
It's possible that that kind of information has been conveyed in the past few hours to my office, 
but it certainly hasn 't reached me. 

MR. SCHREYER: Yes. To the Minister of Labour, whom I notice has entered smiling. I would like 
to ask the Minister of Labour if she can advise, pursuant to the statement she made reportedly 
last evening, that some 1,700- that the Public Service had been diminished by some 1,700 persons 
or jobs. Can the Minister indicate, of that number, how many relate to positions that had been vacant 
in any case, for one year or more? 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Minister of Labour. 

HON. NORMA L. PRICE (Assiniboia): Mr. Speaker, I'll take that as notice. 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for Selkirk. 

MR. HOWARD PAWLEY: Mr. Speaker, my question is to the Acting Attorney-General. 
-(Interjection)- Mr. Speaker, if there is no Acting Attorney-General, I wonder - I know that the 
Attorney-General is absent from the city; is there an acting Acting Attorney-General? 

A MEMBER: They don't know, they're looking up the list . Wait, he's looking up the list. 

ANOTHER MEMBER: It's between Domino and McGregor. 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for Flin Flon. 

MR. THOMAS BARROW: My question, Mr. Speaker, is to the Minister of Health. 1 wonder if the 
Minister could indicate any progress in obtaining a doctor or doctors for the Snow Lake area. 

MR. SHERMAN: No progress in the sense that the Honourable Member for Flin Flon and 1 would 
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interpret the term, Mr. Speaker. We 're still serving the community on an ad hoc basis through services 
obtained through the northern medical services and searching for permanent physician appointees 
to that community. There's no permanent solution as yet. 

MR. SPEAKER: Orders of the Day. The Honourable Member for The Pas. 

MR. RONALD McBRYDE: Mr. Speaker, while we're on the subject of doctors I wonder if the Minister 
of Health could tell us what action he or his department, his government is taking to ensure that 
the doctors do not end up in a poverty situation. 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Minister of Health. 

MR. SHERMAN: Mr. Speaker, I'm following the deliberations of the delegates to the Canadian 
Medical Association Convention very closely as I'm sure my honourable friend is. I have no indications 
up to this point in time that the doctors are headed for a poverty situation . My honourable friend 
and I will stand guard against that potential development together, I'm sure. 

MR. McBRYDE: Mr. Speaker, I wonder if the Minister could indicate to the House if at his attendance 
at the doctors' meeting whether they indicated where they consider the poverty line figure to be, 
and also whether he would be able to get assistance from the Federal Government, assistance for 
persons in receipt of welfare or about to become in receipt of welfare, to counsel them so they 
don 't end up in a poverty situation. 

MR. SHERMAN: Mr. Speaker, I would withhold comment on the second part of the honourable 
member's question . As for the first part, the CMA was expecting to be addressed last evening by 
the Honourable the First Minister who was not able to do so. As a consequence I stood in for my 
Leader and addressed the Medical Association. I expect that they would consider that a particular 
type of impoverishment. 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for Selkirk. 

MR. PAWLEY: Mr. Speaker, my question to the House Leader. Can the House Leader now inform 
the Assembly as to who the acting Attorney-General is or alternatively the acting acting 
Attorney-General. 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Government House Leader. 

MR. JORGENSON: Mr. Speaker, I regret to advise my honourable friend that the acting Leader 
is the Minister of Industry and Commerce who is not here, and the acting acting Attorney-General 
is the Minister of Highways who is also not here. But if my honourable friend has a question that 
he wished to unload I will be happy to take it as notice for the Attorney-General. 

MR. PAWLEY: I wish to thank the Honourable House Leader for his kindness. In view of the 
allegation this morning in the Committee of Municipal Affairs pertaining to possible infringement 
of the Human Rights Act on the part of Highland Park Mobile Estates Limited insofar as the 
Agreement , Tenancy Agreement , would the House Leader be prepared to accept the Agreement 
and to have his colleague, the Attorney-General, refer same to the Human Rights Commission for 
investigation and report ? 

MR. JORGENSON: I'd be happy to accept whatever it is my honourable friend wishes to send over 
to me and make sure that the Attorney-General receives it. 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Minister of Education. 

HON. KEITH A. COSENS {Gimli): Mr. Speaker, I accepted two questions from the Honourable 
Member for The Pas on Monday, June 12th in regard to the IMPACTE and BUNTEP programs. 
The first quest ion asked what percentage of the program costs go to administration; I am awaiting 
an analysis of those cost figures in question before I can give him that reply. 

The second question asked what percentage of the former Director's time is being related to 
teaching in these programs, and 1 am informed that when classes resume in the fall he will be spending 
all of his time on the projects. 

1 also accepted a question on Tuesday, June 13th from the Honourable Member for Rupertsland 
concerning the former Director's salary, and my information is that the former Director is under 

3992 



Tuesday, June 20, 1978 

contract unti l August 31 , 1979 and he will continue to receive a salary in accordance with that 
contract. 

Another question from the Honourable Member for Rupertsland asked me with respect to the 
salary of the former Director of the IMPACTE - BUNTEP project and I wish to report that the former 
Director is receiving the same salary as a travelling professor as he was receiving as Director of 
the project because he has a contract with Brandon University to be paid that salary. 

And while I am on my feet , Mr. Speaker, in relation to this topic I have received an open letter 
from the students currently in the BUNTEP program, and I will not read all of the letter, but perhaps 
a few excerpts. They say, "Our concern is that the recent statements by former Ministers of the 
previous government are merely an attempt to blow their own political horns and will do the program 
no good. We are not deceived by these recent manoeuvres by members of the previous government 
who, during their eight years in office, showed little or no personal interest in our program. This 
does not involve all members of the opposition." Mr. Speaker, I would be very pleased to read 
the whole letter, but I understand that is not appropriate. I would also be prepared to table this 
letter. I am sure it will be of interest to the honourable members opposite. 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Leader of the Opposition. 

MR. SCHREYER: Mr. Speaker, I would like to ask the Minister whether he can indicate, in reply 
to the quotation which he has just read on the record, whether he can indicate as to whether he 
is aware as to which administration it was that conceptualized , initiated and put into application 
programs such as IMPACTE, BUNTEP, PENT, New Careers, all of which impact on the young men 
and women whose very career opportunities and educational training opportunities are served by 
those very same programs? 

MR. COSENS: Mr. Speaker, I am quite aware that it was the previous government that started 
this particular program, and that somewhat puzzles me as to why they follow a line of insidious 
questioning that, according to the students and other people involved in this program, is harming 
the particular program. 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for Rupertsland . 

MR. HARVEY BOSTROM: Mr. Speaker, I can assure the Minister, in reference to the letter that 
he received, that some of the same students are writing to us with concerns that we brought up 
in this Legislature. -(Interjection)-

MR. SPEAKER: Order please. Has the member got a question? 
The Honourable Member for Rupertsland .$ 

MR. BOSTROM: Following the same topic, Mr. Speaker, which was raised here today, and based 
on concerns that have been expressed to us by students in that program, can the Minister answer 
the question which I asked him the other day as to why there are now what appears to be three 
people directing this program, whereas before there was only one? One of those people, the former 
Director, is still receiving a Director's salary and being employed only as a travelling professor, and 
the University President's office is now taking some of the funds for the purpose of directing this 
program and the President, it appears, is receiving some funds for directing as well as his 

MR. SPEAKER: Order please. May I suggest to the honourable member that long harangues in 
the question period are clearly out of order and I would suggest he keep his questions strictly to 
the point. 

The Honourable Member for Rupertsland . 

MR. BOSTROM: Well , Mr. Speaker, I would finish my question by asking the Minister if he can 
explain why there now appears to be three Directors whereas there was only one before, and this 
is one concern which their students are bringing to our attention? 

MR. COSENS: Mr. Speaker, I think I have answered these questions quite adequately and pointed 
out to the Member for Rupertsland that there is one Acting Director, the new Dean of Education 
at Brandon University will become the permanent Director as soon as he arrives and becomes settled 
in his position. The President of the University of Brandon has shown considerable interest in the 
programs and I think that has been an asset to this particular program. I would suggest that the 
Member for Rupertsland read the contents of this particular letter that I have tabled here today 
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signed on behalf of all the BUNTEP students, who say that they will not allow themselves to be 
used as political pawns by persons whose sincerity for our well-being is questionable . . . 

MR. SPEAKER: Order please. Order please. May I suggest to the Honourable Minister that the 
answers to questions be kept short too. 

The Honourable Member for Rupertsland. 

MR. BOSTROM: Thank you, Mr. Speaker. In view of the fact that there are now at least two Directors 
of this program where there was only one Director before - there are at least two and perhaps 
two-and-a-half with the Executive Assistant included - why is this program not receiving any new 
applications for students this year? 

MR. COSENS: Mr. Speaker, I understand that there will be new students coming into the program 
this year. 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for The Pas. 

MR. McBRYDE: Yes, Mr. Speaker. I would like to ask the Minister whether the letter that he has 
received is from a staff person who reports to Mr. Perkins' Executive Assistant or whether it's from 
the students in this BUNTEP program? 

MR. COSENS: Mr. Speaker, the letter is signed by a Mrs. M. Ross, who is Student Affairs Officer 
with BUNTEP. " I have been asked to sign this letter on behalf of the BUNTEP students on campus 
in spring-summer, 1978." 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for The Pas. 

MR. McBRYDE: Mr. Speaker, I wonder if the Minister would acknowledge that that is a person 
who is in a position that is directly responsible to the President or to the President's Executive 
Assistant, and whether he has heard anything from the off-campus students of that particular 
program, which is now being centralized into Brandon instead of decentralized into northern Manitoba 
where it belongs? 

MR. COSENS: Mr. Speaker, I would suggest to the Member for The Pas that the person in question 
is probably closer to the students in the BUNTEP program than to anyone else. I am not surprised 
that he might question her integrity because he has practically questioned the integrity of every 
other person in the program. 

MR. McBRYDE: Yes, Mr. Speaker, the Minister has answered some of the questions that were 
asked him, and he has chosen not to answer some of the other questions. There were a number 
of questions asked to him relating to the expense accounts of Dr. Perkins and the Minister agreed 
to summarize those accounts so we can see what percent of his expenses were being charged to 
the BUNTEP program as opposed to being used for direct program administration. 

I would also like to know from the Minister, who is now somewhat aware of the situation at 
Brandon , I would like to ask the Minister, how many people are currently being paid out of the 
BUNTEP funds that are either not working or no longer working for BUNTEP? 

MR. COSENS: Mr. Speaker, I would have to take that question as notice. I don't have that type 
of information at my fingertips. 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Leader of the Opposition. 

MR. SCHREYER: Mr. Speaker, in the hope that it is not altogether premature, I would like to ask 
the First Minister if he can give some indication based on whatever information, direct and indirect, 
he has received thus far with respect to last evening's storm that hit the Aubigny area and other 
parts of southeastern Manitoba, whether it would seem as though the Emergency Measures work 
is being carried out in its normal expeditious manner, and also whether it is likely that the 
Federal-Provincial Disaster Amelioration Program will be activated under that formula? 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable First Minister. 

HON. STERLING R. LYON (Charleswood): Thank you, Mr. Speaker. The Minister of Industry and 
Commerce, myself, and a member of the Emergency Measures staff, along with the Member for 
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Emerson who joined us in Aubigny this morning and we have just completed a quick tour of the 
area starting this morning. My first comment in response to the question and to give the House 
some impressions of what we saw, and what we have heard from the residents, would be first of 
all that it is remarkable that there was not more loss of life or injury to the residents of the areas 
that were affected by th is act of God, this tornado. I am sure that the House initially would want 
to join unanimously in an expression of sympathy to the family of the young man who was working 
with the CNR and who was trag ically killed when the storm touched down on the outskirts of Ste. 
Anne last evening where extensive damage was done to the CNR cars that were parked at that 
place. We can be grateful in the first instance that there was not more loss of life or injury to our 
citizens. 

We visited first of all in Aubigny this morning and the property damage in that community is 
extensive. Homes, outbuildings, farms , were all touched in one way or another by the storm. I can 
only indicate without getting into all of the detail , that one home was moved some 15 feet off its 
foundations, that a chest-type deep freeze could be observed in the open part of the basement, 
but that the lady who occupied the home told me that deep freeze was not their property, it came 
over from across the street last evening , and was deposited in their basement by the wind. 

Another home that we walked through this morning of comparatively new construction, two years 
old I believe it was, quite an attractive well-built modern home, with the whole roof lifted right off. 
And so one has to see at first hand the extent of the loss and the extent of the force of this tornado 
to realize what I say, namely that property damage was extensive. 

The personal care home in Greenland had a good portion of its roof removed. Fortunately, none 
of the senior citizens in that home, some 18 in number, was injured, through the competent work 
of the nursing and care staff there. They are all out now with relatives or in the nearby hospitals, 
but there is extensive damage to that home as well . 

As I mentioned previously, in Ste. Anne there was damage to the CNR cars that were parked 
on the outskirts of the community; there was extensive damage to a fertilizer plant nearby, and 
considerable damage to homes and farms on the outskirts and a great loss of trees, indicating 
primarily the force of the wind . 

I would like to comment to the House, Mr. Speaker, on the absolutely first-rate work that is 
being done in Aubigny by the Mennonite Disaster Service. They were there last evening and on 
the job today and under the direction of Mr. Sid Reimer, there are approximately 150 volunteers 
working as we make this report now, in the community of Aubigny, and the extent of the clean-up 
that they have been able to achieve and the co-operation that they have been able to extend to 
the residents of that community, certainly is not only heartwarming , it is encouraging to know that 
this kind of work is carried on on a volunteer basis by this excellent group who are prepared to 
move into any community in this province, or indeed in the country, to render the kind of clean-up 
assistance that they are doing now and to help the civil authorities to restore order and to ensure 
that proper care is being given to those who are left without homes, and there were a number of 
course in that category. 

I can report that there was nothing but words of praise that we heard in the course of the trip 
this morning for the crews of Manitoba Hydro, for the crews of Manitoba Telephone System, and 
for the RCMP, for being on the job immediately restoring essential services where that was possible, 
and doing the kind of exemplary work that we have come to expect from the field personnel of 
the two Crown corporations and of course from the RCMP. 

The Emergency Measures Organization of course is available, as a co-ordinator of activities, and 
it has been made clear that any provincial services that are requested from the Department of Health 
or Department of Highways, and so on, these requests should be made through the Emergency 
Measures Organization so that they can then be passed along to the proper departments of 
government and acted upon accordingly. 

We had the occasion to meet with most of the council of the Rural Municipality of Ste. Anne. 
The Council of the Rural Municipality of Morris was in session in Morris when we were in that area, 
but the damage principally seems to be confined to those two municipalities, Morris and Ste. Anne, 
although there is a possibility, according to my colleague, the Honourable House Leader, that there 
may well have been some scattered damage to the west of the river in the area of Morris Constituency 
wh ich he is going to take a look at later on today. 

From our standpoint , we will be appointing almost immediately a provincial representative to 
assess the damage that has occurred to property in the area affected by the tornado. We will, as 
a matter of course, not ify Ottawa of the occurrence, formally notify them of the occurrence of this 
tornado without at th is time request ing formally any assistance, because as my honourable friend 
will appreciate, the formula under which Ottawa acts requ ires that there be damage, as I understand 
it , in excess of $1 million net. It works out to $1 .00 per capita, before the Ottawa Disaster Relief 
Assistance would click in. So at this stage I can only report to the House, to the people of Manitoba, 
in response to my honourable friend 's question , that it would be premature to make any statement 
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relative to Federal or Provincial cash assistance at this stage. What we are involved in, and what 
the people concerned are involved in at the present time, is clean-up, assessment of damage, the 
bringing to bear upon the damaged areas of any resources that the province or its Crown 
Corporations, or other worthy organizations such as the Mennonite Disaster Service can do, and 
thereafter to assess the damage to see whether or not it qualifies under the Federal rule. 

So I will make no further statement on that at this time, because it is really not germane to 
what is going on in the first 24 hours, which is the clean-up and the restoration so much as possible, 
of the habitability of homes. 

I can mention one other fact for my honourable friends' appreciation , as we indeed appreciated 
it when we saw it. When we first drove into Aubigny this morning, there was a home on which most 
of the shingles had been stripped off, but there was a crew from the Mennonite Disaster Service 
already with ladders up there, shovelling off the rest of the shingles. By the time we had left Aubigny, 
they had not only shovelled off the shingles, they were starting to reshingle the roof to make the 
home habitable for the residents of it, so that kind of immediate work is going on and it is, as 
I said before, extremely heartwarming to see it, and to see the co-operation and the pluck of the 
people involved in this natural kind of disaster. 

So until these damage reports are fully available, which will probably be a matter of days if not 
weeks, it would be premature to make any comment about cash assistance, but certainly the matter 
is in hand, as we have seen it this morning and early this afternoon, and we will remain in close 
consultation with the elected municipal officials and the EMO people, and the communities involved 
to see if there is any further immediate assistance that can be rendered . 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Leader of the Opposition. 

MR. SCHREYER: Mr. Speaker, in thanking the First Minister for his reply or statement, as the case 
may be, I would like to take note of the parallel between events of last night, the tornado damage, 
and that of almost exactly a year ago in areas of very near proximity. It seems to involve, whenever 
this kind of tragedy and damage does strike the province, to be in the southeastern part of the 
province. The parallel in terms of the work that was carried out by the Mennonite volunteer agency, 
and by local authorities and the co-ordination by the Provincial Emergency Measures 
Organization. 

I would really like to avoid making a statement, rather I would like to ask the First Minister, 
that in the event that , again thinking in terms of the parallel with the damage and extent of damage 
of last year, whether in the event that the Federal-Provincial formula does not apply because the 
threshold of approximately $1 million is not realized, whether there would be the application of a 
Provincial-Municipal type of program to cover the costs of normally non-insurable damage, in which 
case the municipal contribution is in the order of a maximum of one dollar per capita, as well. Will 
the First Minister undertake to look at this possibility in the event that the Federal-Provincial threshold 
is not arrived at? 

MR. LYON: In brief, Mr. Speaker, the answer to the my honourable friend 's question is yes, we 
will certainly look at it, but as I have indicated before, it would be premature, at this stage, to make 
any statement about it, or to raise any hopes falsely with respect to Provincial and/or Federal 
participation . 

My honourable friend will be aware, of course, as I know he is, that there is no provincial plan 
as such under which this kind of emergency in terms of cash assistance can be treated, although 
an ad hoc plan was developed by his administration with respect to the disaster that he referred 
to last year, and I have that documentation in front of me, and certainly we will be looking at it 
as the situation evolves, and as we determine the extent of the damage that we are facing . 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for Kildonan. 

MR. PETER FOX: Thank you, Mr. Speaker. My question is to the Honourable House Leader. Can 
he indicate how many more bills are to be introduced? 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Government House Leader. 

MR. JORGENSON: Mr. Speaker, I shall have to examine the number of bills that have been 
introduced since the question was asked last and then determine how many more are yet to come. 
I believe it would perhaps be in the vicinity of approximately between five and ten. 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Minister of Mines. 
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HON. BRIAN RANSOM (Souris-Killarney): Mr. Speaker, sometime ago I took as notice a question 
from the Honourable Member for Transcona concerning payment of royalties for gravel and sand 
used by Mr. Jarmoc in construction of the road in the Whiteshell. The question was whether, in 
fact , Mr. Jarmoc had paid for the use of this material; the answer was no; then subsequently the 
Honourable Member for Rupertsland asked why Mr. Jarmoc did not require such a permit, or did 
not appear to require a permit to remove this material. The answer, Mr. Speaker, was that the general 
work permit issued by the Parks Branch included authorization for Mr. Jarmoc to remove 
material. 

And on the same day, the honourable member also asked who was responsible for collecting 
the royalties for that material , and the answer is that the Mineral Resources Division of my department 
is responsible for that and steps will be taken to collect the appropriate royalties. 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for Rupertsland . 

MR. BOSTROM: Yes, thank you, Mr. Speaker. To follow-up the information given by the Honourable 
Minister, could he explain to the House why this particular individual was given this special 
consideration at the time, of not having to pay a royalty on the material which he removed from 
a Crown gravel pit, and given that other operators in other areas and building other sub-division 
roads, have to pay for such material as a routine matter? 

MR. RANSOM: Well , Mr. Speaker, in the general work permit that was issued by the Parks Branch 
contained an addendum which stated that Mr. Jarmoc would be responsible for paying the 
appropriate royalties. The permit provided authorization to use the pit, but stated that he had to 
pay the royalties , and I might add, Mr. Speaker, that it is not unusual that the royalties would not 
be paid by this period of time following the use of the material. There are precedents where material 
has been used to construct roads and the permit was issued sometime after the construction took 
place, but I can assure the honourable member that my department will be taking appropriate steps 
to collect the royalties . 

MR. BOSTROM: Thank you, Mr. Speaker. Can the Honourable Minister answer the question as 
to whether or not this individual was required to post a bond in order to be an operator and removing 
material from this pit , and further to that, who was responsible for measuring the quantities of material 
removed from the pit in order that payment can be made on the royalties in the regular way? 

MR. RANSOM: I have no knowledge of the question of the bond, Mr. Speaker, Speaker, but I 
certainly will take that as notice. With respect to determining the amount of material that has been 
used , that matter will be checked by my department on receipt of an estimate of the amount of 
material that has been used. 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for Brandon East. 

MR. LEONARD S. EVANS: Thank you, Mr. Speaker. I would like to address a question to the 
Minister of Industry and Commerce, and ask the Minister whether Tan-Jay Limited, which has recently 
received a DREE grant, Federal Industrial Incentive grant, has that company applied to the Manitoba 
Development Corporation for a loan, or has it received any assistance whatsoever from the Manitoba 
Development Corporation? 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Minister of Industry and Commerce. 

HON. ROBERT (BOB) BANMAN (La Verendrye): Mr. Speaker, I am not aware that there is a formal 
application in before the MDC, and to date there have been no loans made to that company. 

MR. EVANS: A supplementary, Mr. Speaker. I wonder if the Honourable Minister could advise 
whether his Department of Industry and Commerce has made any grants of any kind whatsoever 
to that particular company, at this time, to help them with this particular expansion? 

MR. BANMAN: Mr. Speaker, I would have to check that. I don't know if there was any assistance 
with regard to any feasibility grants or anything. I'll have to check that and get back to the 
member. 

MR. EVANS: One other question , Mr. Speaker, related to the organization of the Department of 
Industry and Commerce. Can the Honourable Minister advise whether he has now decided to retain 
the trade development branch in his department and/or the Manitoba Trading Corporation, in spite 
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of the rather negative suggestions made by the Task Force on Government Organization and 
Economy? 

MR. BANMAN: Mr. Speaker, did the member say retain, or re-train? 

MR. EVANS: Mr. Speaker, the word I used was retain, to keep in existence or even expanding 
if impossible and in view of the stagnating economy that we are now facing , Mr. Speaker, I wonder 
if I could ask that question. Whether the Minister has any plans to expand the trade development 
branch activities of his department to help industry in Manitoba? 

MR. BANMAN: Mr. Speaker, to answer the previous question, as I mentioned yesterday, the moneys 
are in the Estimates to keep these people actively on the payroll , and keep them trying to promote 
and sell Manitoba products. The other thing, we are pursuing forming some stronger relationships 
with some of our federal counterparts in the Department of Industry, Trade, and Commerce, and 
we are going to try and use their services as much as possible to try and help Manitobans sell 
their products across - whether it be in Europe or in Latin-American countries. 

MR. SPEAKER: Order please. The allotted time for questioning having expired , we will proceed 
with the Orders of the Day. 

ORDERS OF THE DAY 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Government House Leader. 

HON. WARNER H. JORGENSON: Mr. Speaker, I beg to move, seconded by the Honourable 
Attorney-General, that Mr. Speaker do now leave the Chair and the House resolve itself into a 
Committee to consider of the Supply to be granted to Her Majesty. 

MOTION presented and carried and the House resolved itself into a Committee of Supply, with 
the Honourable Member for Radisson in the Chair for the Department of Northern Affairs and the 
Honourable Member for Crescentwood in the Chair for the Civil Service Commission.$ 

CONCURRENT COMMITTEES OF SUPPLY 

SUPPLY - CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION 

MR. CHAIRMAN, Mr. Warren Steen: Page 17, Civil Service Commission, Item 1.(a) Salaries-pass 
- the Member for St. George. 

MR. BILLIE URUSKI: Thank you, Mr. Chairman . I have several questions that arise out of today's 
reports in the press that I would like some clarification from the Minister and possibly she gave 
us the answer but since Hansard is not out yet , I was not able to check the figures. In today's 
press, there is a statement purported to have been made by the Minister that the government payroll 
was reduced by some 1,700 employees since last October. Yesterday, Mr. Chairman , the Minister, 
upon questioning from myself and other members on this side, gave us figures to the effect thet 
there were 165 actual persons laid off, 81 of whom had been regular civil servants, 84 of whom 
had been term employees of more than one year 's standing. In addition to that , she indicated that 
there were 691 , I believe, - I'll just check that figure - 69 1 contracts that have expired and term 
positions which were removed, making a total of approximately 856 positions within the Civil Service 
that have been removed. 

I also, and I want the Minister to either correct me or agree with me, am under the iression 
that the figures that she gave with respect to the 165 were actual persons within positions that 
were laid off. I was under that impression . Okay. Also, with respect to the 691 there were some 
persons in those positions and they were just positions that were not filled of the remaining contracts 
and term positions less than a year . -(Interjection)- Well , the 691 , I was informed yesterday were 
contracts that had been expired and I made a note here: "Contract or term of less than a year," 
there were 691 positions in addition to the 165, making a total of 856 positions. 

I would like the Minister to specifically give me the information as to the 691 , whether there 
were actual persons in those positions or they were just positions that had been eliminated and 
also, to ascertain for me where she received, and how she arrived at the figure of 1, 700. 

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Minister of Labour. 
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MRS. PRICE: I would prefer to wait until I read Hansard to see the figure of 1,700. I was talking 
in figures of 1,300 and I would like to refer to Hansard first . 

MR. URUSKI: Well , okay then, let's use the Minister' s figure now of 1,300. If the Minister can provide 
for me how she makes up the figure of 1,300, I will discount that figure in the press and use her 
figure of 1 ,300. 

MRS. PRICE: Well , I mention the number 691 that were contract and somebody asked me yesterday 
whether some of them were contracts that had run out or they were all people that some had been 
let out and I took it as notice and I haven't come back with the answer yet but I will get it. 

MR. URUSKI: I see, of the 691 then there were some vacant positions that were eliminated as 
wel l. 

MRS. PRICE: At this point , I can 't give you an answer until I . . . 

MR. URUSKI: Okay, and so including the 165, plus those 691 , gives us a figure of roughly 856 
or roughly 860 as a total. Now there st ill is a difference of 450, somewhere in that vicinity, that 
were eliminated. I would like to know where those positions were and what they were. You see, 
the impression that is left , Mr. Chairman, is that the government payroll was reduced by 1,700. 
That impression that is left is that there were 1, 700 civil servants that were let off, whether they 
were term employees, contract , casual or whatever might be. The impression that is left is that there 
were 1, 700 people let go. Now if the Minister without Portfolio now is saying that there were positions 
which were not filled, which had been vacant for some time prior to that, then I want to know and 
I want the Minister to tell me. 

MRS. PRICE: Those figures include other permanent and temporary positions that weren 't filledtthat 
went vacant through attrition and after October. 

MR. URUSKI: Which figures are you talking about? 

MRS. PRICE: The 1 ,300. 

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Minister without Portfolio responsible for the Task Force. 

MR. SIDNEY SPIVAK (River Heights): Well , possibly I can clarify this so that there won 't be any 
misunderstanding. 

MR. WALDING: Is he speaking on a point of order, Mr. Chairman? 

MR. CHAIRMAN: No, he asked if he could be recognized to help clarify a statement which the 
Member forSt. George is partly making reference to. 

MR. WALDING: On a point of order, Mr. Chairman, . .. 

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for St. Vital on a point of order. 

MR. WALDING: ... I understand that you are keeping a list of speakers and 

MR. CHAIRMAN: Yes. 

MR. WALDING: ... and that if the Minister wishes to speak, surely he should put his name down 
the same as every other member of the committee has to do unless, of course, he has a point 
of order or a matter of privilege, for which he can interrupt the proceedings. 

MR. CHAIRMAN: Well , to the Member for St. Vital , the Member for St. George and other members 
have been questioning the Minister on the reduction of staff people and they have brought into 
play figures that have been used by the Minister without Portfolio as well as figures that she has 
used and so he is of the opinion that he might be able to clarify the matter. 

MR. URUSKI: Mr. Chairman, on a point of privilege now. I did not make any reference to statements 
made by the Minister without Portfolio. I made reference specifically to the statements that have 
been attributed to the Minister of Labour, the Minister responsible for the Civil Service Commission, 
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in yesterday's press that she made to this committee. She indicated now to members and to myself 
in questioning, that she did not use the figure of 1, 700. I have accepted her statement that she 
did not use that figure. However, during yesterday's questioning, the total number of staff positions 
and staff reductions that she provided this committee with totalled, in my figures, 856 of which is 
made up in two parts, 691, which includes the contracts which have either expired and have not 
been renewed and also includes term positions of less than a year, and an additional 165 actual 
persons who were laid off, 81 of whom were full-time civil servants and 84 of whom were term 
employees with service of more than one year. Those are the two figures that she presented us; 
however, in today's press there is a statement purported to have been made by the Minister that 
the Civil Service government payroll was reduced by 1,700 and she indicates now that she did not 
use the figure of 1, 700 but that there was a figure of 1,300. Now, I wanted to elicit from the Minister 
how she arrived at the figure of 1,300. 

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Minister of Labour. 

MRS. PRICE: To the Member for St. George, I said that I don't recall using the figure 1,700; I 
was using the word 1,300. I would like to read off some figures for the pay period between October 
21st and May 5th, 1978. The change, the reduction in the staff was 258 civil servants, 392 term 
employees, of which 109 -(Interjection)- Are you writing? I'm sorry. 

MR. URUSKI: Yes, I'm trying to . 

MRS. PRICE: Oh, sorry. 

MR. URUSKI: Pay period of what period? 

MRS. PRICE: October 21st to May 5th. 

MR. URUSKI: 1977 to 1978. 

MRS. PRICE: Right. 

MR. URUSKI: Okay. Now ... . 

MRS. PRICE: There was a reduction of 258 civil servants. 

MR. URUSKI: Positions or people? 

MRS. PRICE: People. 

MR. URUSKI: Okay. Full-time civil servants. 

MRS. PRICE: Right. 

MR. URUSKI: Okay. 

MRS. PRICE: Term employees, 392 in total , of which 109 were permanent and 283 were 
temporary . 

MR. URUSKI: People? 

MRS. PRICE: Right. And contract employees, 685, for a total of 1,335 and that is net. 

MR. URUSKI: Contract positions were all filled? With people? 

MRS. PRICE: 1 have some answers to some of the questions that the Member for St. George asked 
me yesterday when you would like them. 

MR. URUSKI: Yes. I just want to - just to finish that off, it's 1,335 people. 

MRS. PRICE: Yes. 

MR. URUSKI: Were there any in addition to that? Could the Minister, in the breakdown that she 
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has given me, if she is unable to supply it now, prepare a list , department by department, as to 
where the specific cuts have been made in staff? Is that available? 

MRS. PRICE: I read that off yesterday, I don 't know where you were. 

MR. URUSKI: No, yesterday's figures that you read off to me, if I recall, were related to 165 
staff. 

MRS. PRICE: Oh, I see. 

MR. URUSKI: Yes. And that went through all the departments and I believe made my figures -
I was out on one, but it was right on . But it dealt with 165. 

MRS. PRICE: I would like to suggest to the Member for St. George that there has been such 
confusion over these figures that I would like to suggest that I get a report and I get it checked 
and present it to the House for you in its entirety. 

MR. URUSKI: During the Estimates? 

MRS. PRICE: I can get them for you today or tomorrow. 

MR. URUSKI: Yes, what I would like, if it's possible, through you, Mr. Chairman, to have them 
put into the record if they are not to be read so they will be included along with a record of Hansard. 
Is that possible? 

MR. CHAIRMAN: Well , I have to seek some guidance from the Clerk. What if we were fortunate 
enough to finish this department today and yet the Minister can't supply it until tomorrow or the 
following day, how do we get it into Hansard? What if she tables it right with the Legislature, right 
in the Chamber, is that not good enough? And then it can be added to Hansard a day or two later, 
is that all right? 

MR. URUSKI: Yes, that's okay. 

MR. CHAIRMAN: Or, as the Clerk says, it doesn't even have to be added to Hansard if it is tabled 
with sufficient copies. Is that satisfactory? 

MR. URUSKI: Fine, that's satisfactory, Mr. Chairman. Thank you. 

MRS. PRICE: I think the reason being that there are some figures that come from Management 
Committee, some come from the Task Force and some come from the Civil Service and there's 
been just such a confusion of figures that that's probably more satisfactory to you too. 

MR. URUSKI: Please, tha would be. 

MRS. PRICE: I have some notes here if the Member for St. George would like to bear with me. 
Yesterday the Member for St. George and some of his colleagues asked me questions that I have 
the answers for. !believe it was the Member for Lac du Bonnet who asked me about the number 
of civil servants as at the end of the fiscal year 1977-78. I can advise that there were 10,941 civil 
servants as of March 24, 1978. I gave a figure yesterday out of the annual book of 11 ,073 which 
represented the number of civil servants as of December, 1977. I am informed that even more recent 
figures might be obtained from Personnel Administration Branch of Management Committee of 
Cabinet during the examination of the Executive Council 's Estimates. 

I would also like to advise members that the number of temporary employees as of March 24, 
1978, was 1,126 and that the number of contract employees as of March 26, 1978 was 660. I might 
point out, Mr. Chairman, that these figures are compiled on the same basis as those described 
in the Annual Report and can be updated during the review of Executive Council , the body responsible 
for maintaining them. 

I was also asked yesterday when the most recent Commissioners were appointed by the 
government. Shirley Bradshaw and R. 0. Hunter were appointed part-time Commissioners for a 
period of one year effective October 26, 1977. 

On the subject of Commissioners, I can respond to another inquiry about the date of the 
appointment of the current chairman of the Commission and the change in status of Mr. Duncan. 
The Order-in-Council No. 1098/ 77 changed the status of Douglas Duncan from full-time to part-time 
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relative to the business of the Commission and provided for Merlin Newton to replace Mr. Duncan 
as a full-time member. The effective date was October 26, 1977. As I mentioned yesterday, these 
transactions were authorized in accordance with Sections 4, subsection 1 and Section 4, subsection 
2 of The Civil Service Act. 

Just before the end of the session last night, the Member for Winnipeg Centre asked me about 
the number of appeals received by the Civil Service Commission related to dismissals. I would like 
to inform the member that the Commission has received no formal appeals for dismissal since 
January, 1977, however, two appeals were heard by the Commission relative to layoffs. It should 
be noted that employees within the collective agreement may appeal through an arbitration board 
which is handled through Staff Relations Branch of Management Committee. It is quite possible 
then that some appeals have been processed in this manner and I would suggest that the honourable 
member might asK his question during the Executive Council Estimates to obtain the complete 
picture. There were several other questions, Mr. Chairman, which clearly fell under the authority 
of the Executive Council, so I have endeavoured to collect as much information for members as 
I could. 

The question was asked, how many full-time vacant positions there were as of October 31, 1977? 
The figure I have received for October 23, 1977, is 1, 134. With respect to the question concerning 
the number of full-time positions eliminated, there were 401 positions eliminated as of the fiscal 
year ending March 24, 1978. 

Another question, Mr. Chairman, regarding the number of new positions created since October 
31 , 1977, I can report that as of the new fiscal year beginning March 25, 1978, approximately 138 
new positions were established . 

I was also asked questions with respect to the number of employees hired and released since 
October, 1977, and the total financial settlements for those who were laid off. The request for this 
information was previously made by an order for return, and the information to that effect is currently 
being gathered for submission to the House. 

The Member for Transcona asked me a question about two specific individuals; Joy Cooper and 
Grant Wichenko. I'm advised that both of them are on an availability list maintained by the Civil 
Service Commission. I regret that I am unable to provide more detailed information, as both of them 
currently have cases that are being considered by a Board of Arbitration, and further comment might 
tend to prejudice the proceedings. 

Mr. Chairman, I would like to table two items which were requested yesterday: there's the letter 
from the Accountant from my department and also the organizational chart that you requested. Thank 
you. 

MR. CHAIRMAN: With the Clerk being absent right now, maybe the Member for St. Vital can give 
me a hand. 

The Member for St. George. 

MR. URUSKI: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. The Minister, in supplying us with the figures that she 
did just now, giving us the number of 1,335 staff that were released since October of 1977, indicated 
that she gave us a figure now of 258 civil servants which were released. However, yesterday, during 
questioning , she gave us a figure of 165 civil servants of whom 84 were term and 81 were full-time 
civil servants, yet, in addition to the 258 today, we have 109 permanent term employees. I presume 
those are over one year 's duration, and we have 283 temporary term employees - I presume that 
category are employees of less than one year or less than six month's duration. I'd like that clarified, 
because those figures just don't jibe, if she wouldn't mind commenting on them. 

MRS. PRICE: The 258, Mr. Chairman, are the 258 that haven't been filled, they came about by 
attrition and the 165 were actually laid off. 

MR. URUSKI: Mr. Chairman , unless the Minister misunderstood me, I was quite specific when I 
asked her, and it was confirmed not only by herself, but by her colleague who nodded his head, 
the Minister without Portfolio, when I spoke about the 1,335 positions, I asked him whether it was 
people, and he said, yes. He spoke about people. Now,' the Minister tells me that it is not people, 
there are positions that have been in those figures. Now, please, I would like some clarification of 
it. Which of those figures within 1 ,335 are actual persons, which of those figures are positions that 
were deleted? Could she give us the entire breakdown once again? 

MRS. PRICE: Well, the breakdown is just as I gave the Member for St. George. They were all 
people, they weren't all actually laid off, some resigned, but they were all people, the 1,335. 

MR. URUSKI: Okay, then how does the 258 match up with the 165, of today versus 
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MRS. PRICE: 81 were civil servants. 

MR. URUSKI: It's a figure of 93 positions. 

MRS. PRICE: In the 258, 81 were actually laid off in the civil servants. 

MR. URUSKI: 81 . 

MRS. PRICE: And the balance was attrition . 

MR. URUSKI: And the difference? 

MRS. PRICE: The balance of them from the 258 were by attrition. 

MR. CHAIRMAN: Retirements and so on. 

MR. URUSKI: Retirements and the lik? 

MRS. PRICE: Yes, or promoted or transferred . 

MR. URUSKI: Well , when you talk about transferring and promoted , do those figures not end up 
in the number in other departments? 

MRS. PRICE: Yes, it's possible that they could. 

MR. URUSKI: Well okay, could the Minister then tell me of those remaining , that's 177, of those 
then let's be more specific - let's find out who has been promoted, how many were promoted, 
how many have retired, how many have been transferred and to where, and what the status of 
the 177 are? Are those figures available? 

MRS. PRICE: Those figures will all be given to you in the Executive Council report , and as I 
suggested earlier, I will be prepared to have an extensive report with the figures that pertain to 
the Civil Service _made and presented to the House. But those figures go under the Executive Council, 
and you'll get them in their Estimates. 

MR. URUSKI: Well , can I become more specific then and question the Minister with respect to 
those 177? Did those people, of the 177 that she speaks of, actually leave the Civil Service, or 
as a result of say, promotions, were those positions done away with and new ones created in the 
new positions that they took over? 

MRS. PRICE: I am informed that they could have gone from one position to another, and the position 
that they left would not be refilled . 

MR. URUSKI: Right, so the actual number of people who have left the Civil Service still remains 
at 81, or .. 

MRS. Price: Yes. 

MR. URUSKI: Or is there any that were in that 177 that have actually retired from the Civil Service? 
I am presuming, of course, that in that 81 are the resignations and the terminations. 

MRS. PRICE: Pardon me? 

MR. URUSKI: I am assuming, or the Minister can correct me, that out of that 81 figure that she 
gave me were regular civil servants, that those were either those who resigned voluntarily or were 
terminated. 

MRS. PRICE: No, they were actual layoffs, the 81 ; out of the 165, 21 resigned and 29 had been 
re-employed elsewhere, but the 81 were actual layoffs. 

MR. URUSKI: Layoffs. Okay. Were there others that have retired? 
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MRS. PRICE: Yes, there have been some retirements and they are in the 177 figure, where you 
take the 81 off the 258. 

MR. URUSKI: So that in effect, of the 1 ,335, that figure, dealing with full-time civil servants, the 
actual numbers are of persons who either retired , were laid off, resigned or terminated , is somewhat 
less than the 258 figure that the Minister gave, to understand that properly? Because I presume 
that some persons were promoted and that position was eliminated as a result of promotion, so 
that they actually did not leave the Civil Service. What I'm trying to establish, Mr. Chairman, is not 
the number of staff man years or SMYs as the figure is within the Civil Service; I want to know 
how many people actually lfft ; not the numbers of positions that may have been open and not filled 
and the like. That 's what I'm getting at , and if I could have those figures.? 

MR. CHAIRMAN: To the Member for St. George, one of the drawbacks, as I see it, is that a goodly 
number of people come under the Civil Service Commission, then there's a handful of people that 
come under Executive Council which are management, and we are dealing with civil servants, we 
are dealing with term people, whether they be contract people or temporary people and so on, and 
the Minister has offered to give you a complete breakdown of all persons in the Civil Service, those 
that were terminated, those that retired and left for other reasons. And also, I believe you requested 
that breakdown pertaining to departments, and this is a fair amount of work, I would think, and 
she has said that the staff will get it for you within the next day or two. 

MR. URUSKI: Yes, well, the only thing is, the statements that were made, and maybe the Minister 
is as confused as I am, but I certainly am confused on the figures that she has given me because 
during the discussions we talked about actual people leaving the Civil Service, and yet within our 
discussions now, upon trying to clarify just the permanent civil servants, the 258 figure that she 
gave us - leaving aside all the rest of the temporary, the term employees - I am finding, or at 
least I gather from her information, that there were some positions that were not filled or removed 
and no people actually left the Civil Service; they may have changed jobs, which eliminated the 
position, but there wasn't a net reduction in staff. And yet there is that figure, and that's what I'm 
trying to get at. And if that will be available I want to make sure that all the figures come in, because 
if the figures that come in are strictly the numbers that we have received here and there is no clear 
delineation as to what had happened and who went where, then they will be meaningless, because 
then that 1,300 figure will remain and yet it still will not give us the answer that I am seeking . Is 
that ... ? 

MRS. PRICE: Yes. I would like to, in consulation with the Task Force figures and the Civil Service 
figures, come back with a complete report for you, and I think if you have it on paper in front of 
you, and we all do, then it will be much less confusing. And I will have it in the next day or 
two. 

MR. URUSKI: Thank you , Mr. Chairman. Unless there are some questions from my colleagues on 
the numbers, I have other areas I want to go to, but maybe I could leave that. 

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for Selkirk. 

MR. PAWLEY: I would like to just ask for some brief clarifications, and if my colleague has already 
asked this question then please so indicate, because I don't want to waste the committee's time. 
But in both the Winnipeg Tribune and the Winnipeg Free Press today ... 

MR. CHAIRMAN: Yes, to the Member for Selki rk , we've just gone over that and ... 

MR. PAWLEY: see. So, those statements are incorrect and I . . . 

MRS. PRICE: I don 't recall using the number 1,700. I haven't seen the paper, nor have I seen 
Hansard, but I said I will look into it. I have been using the figure 1,300. 

MR. PAWLEY: Could I just also inquire from the Minister, because I had asked questions yesterday 
about the vacant positions and how many of those vacant positions as of October 31st were 
eliminated, and how many of those positions are included in the figure of 1,300?! 

MR. CHAIRMAN: To the Member for Selkirk, the Minister took a number of questions yesterday 
as notice and came back today and has just moments ago completed reading about a four-and-a-half 
page report with many answers . 

4004 



Tuesday, June 20, 1978 

MR. PAWLEY: Fine, I shall read that in Hansard . 

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for Winnipeg Centre. 

MR. J.R. (Bud) BOYCE: Yes, Mr. Chairman. Last night the Minister of Finance undertook to accept 
an order for return to provide us with comparable print-outs which in the final analysis will be the 
proof of the pudding of just how many people are or are not employed within the Civil Service. 
It 's going to be interesting, Mr. Chairman, to find out just exactly how many people are hidden 
by the government. I think of one particular case where the salary of one employee with the John 
Howard and Elizabeth Fry was being paid and that it was a former civil servant who had been 
seconded to this. But my opinion is that we can 't get any further in probing figures because we 
can play games all day with figures , and Public Accounte of course comes out and we can count 
noses and dollars and the rest of it. 

But the Minister had undertaken to answer another question relative to whether Mr. Duncan -
and I know the Minister doesn't want to discuss it, but nevertheless, I had asked her this one question 
and she undertook to find out whether the cheques proffered to Mr. Duncan had been endorsed. 
You know, I understand that he may need money to live on, but I wonder if he has endorsed and 
deposited these cheques without prejudice or whether he has deposited them into a trust account, 
or whether Mr. Duncan has actually received funds as suggested by the Minister, that he is n fact 
drawing money from the Superannuation Fund .? 

MRS. PRICE: I understand that there have not been any cheques returned to the Superannuation 
Department and so at this point there must be something in the works, and I would ask the member 
not to ask me and to go ahead with his questioning to the First Mini ter when he gets his Estimates 
into the House. 

MR. BOYCE: Mr. Chairman, I want to thank the Minister for the answer from her position, which 
I accept as being, you know - the only answers she can give are based on her own information. 
And also, on the other question I had asked her about appeals to the Board. 

In looking at another area, Mr. Chairman, with reference to the Civil Service itself, I would like 
to put on record the co-operation that, in my brief tenure of office, I received from the staffing 
people within the Civil Service, the Civil Service staff, who made an attempt to understand the 
objectives of the government and try to meet the needs of those objectives by attracting personnel 
to some pretty difficult areas. 

But I wonder, Mr. Chairman, just exactly what is taking place in this particular capacity of 
government. I was astounded when the Premier, in his wisdom, decided to appoint me to the 
Executive Council , to find out the limited capacity of our Civil Service to deal with such a monolith. 
Having spent some time in the private sector and being impressed that the most important asset 
that a company has are those people who are employed by it - they all had rather large capacities 
to deal with personnel problems, the careers and everything else within that system - I listened 
to the Minister's earlier remarks in which she said that there were counselling services and things 
of this nature. But I' ll have to express an opinion, Mr. Chairman, that one of the things that causes 
problems within large organizations is the loss of touch by the people at the top with those people 
who are actually faced with the problem of delivering a service. 

A good case in point is the Post Office. In my judgment, the technological advances which were 
imposed on the system without thepproper involvement of the staff has led to the current difficulty 
because the people who, on a day-to-day basis are faced with the problem of distributing mail in 
the country really figure that the rest of the society, everybody that's demanding these services 
don't give a tinker's damn about them as people, and this builds up resentments and frustrations 
and the rest of it. 

So I would like to ask the Minister relative to this particular item just exactly what her opinions 
and views are and how she thinks she is going to handle two problems. One deals with redundancy 
and the other deals with burn-out. Now these are two terms that they use in management. In dealing 
with redundancy, this is one of the problem areas, and I share with the Minister the difficulty of 
resolving some of these problems when a particular thrust program or production of a particular 
th ing becomes redundant, how the people are going to be redeployed. But it is necessary from 
time to time. 

A case that epitomizes just how ridiculous some things can get some times: the story is told, 
that during the Second World War when there was a possibility of England being invaded, they 
deployed troops on the English coast and , in so doing, they discovered that there was a nice little 
stanchion there with gravel around it and a rope and a bell ; that a civil service position had been 
established to ring the bell when they spotted the Spanish fleet. And stories go on like this. When 
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you see people shooting off batteries out here every year, and there's five men standing there -
if you ask them why the fifth man is standing there, he's still standing there to hold the horses. 
So redundancy is a real problem. Nevertheless, there is within the Civi l Service, by and large, a 
group of dedicated people who provide excellent service in the interests of the public and I wonder 
just exactly what the Minister intends after she has told us about the cutbacks and the capacity 
of this staff to deal with career planning. It is possible, I would suggest , Mr. Chairman, through 
you to the Minister, that when governments see emphasis being changed that they can actually 
plan for the redeployment of the people long in advance of the imposition of the guillotine. So with 
reference to redundancy, I would ask the Minister what her plans are in this regard . 

MRS. PRICE: Mr. Chairman, to the Member for Winnipeg Centre, what we are doing with this period 
of restraint and program that this government is going through, is re-evaluating the different 
programs, positions and job descriptions and hope to come out wi th a much higher performance 
in the Civil Service, that the performance will be the best possible. We figure that in some areas 
there has been an over-abundance of staff and probably in some there hasn't been enough. What 
we are doing is evaluating the different departments ; we will have reports back and we will move 
people as we feel will be to the betterment of the operation. 

MR. BOYCE: Well , Mr. Chairman, that's very interesting , because in listening to the other Ministers 
present their Estimates - each one as they have appeared before the committee with their Estimates 
- they said that there has been no fat within the Civil Service, that these people are all earning 
their keep. I was wondering if the Minister could identify just exactly which department she is referring 
to. 

MRS. PRICE: Well, I'm starting with my own department, the Department of Labour. There are 
some areas that we feel have enough staff; we feel that there are some that could have more and 
that some have too much ; we're working on that . I haven't heard the other Ministers so I can't 
vouch for their statements, but I do feel that by taking a good hard look at it , there are areas where 
we will be able to have a higher rate of performance by studying them , and this is what we are 
doing precisely in the Civil Service. 

MR. BOYCE: Well, Mr. Chairman , I would suggest for the Minister's information that she read the 
remarks of her colleague, the Minister of Health, for example, in which he says that within the 
department all of the people are doing an excellent job, etc. etc. etc. I can 't give her the particular 
page in Hansard . 

MR. CHAIRMAN: Just which hour of the 58 hours. 

MR. BOYCE: Well , just in raising that question , Mr. Chairman, as I was sitting here last night -
it's too bad that we don 't impose the rule that they print in Hansard the particular time - like 
in Ottawa, they print on the left-hand side of the columns the time of the day that it is - because 
it seems that we are perhaps belabouring some issues. But just on that fact , I know some of my 
friends opposite are a little chagrined at the time that we're tak ing in passing the Estimates of the 
government but, nevertheless, ludicrous charges were made - not by us - a bunch of horror 
stories were going to be told . We keep waiting for the horror stories, the amount of deficits, the 
inefficiency of the Civil Service Commission, the Civil Service itself and all the rest of it; all these 
accusations were made and , of course, haven't been substantiated. 

As far as the figures are concerned , Mr. Chairman , Public Accounts will review once again just 
exactly the number of civil servants who were employed at any particular time. I imagine, in fact 
1 know, that the Provincial Auditor will address himself to the true presentation of the dollars and 
noses and all the rest of it. 

But another point that I had raised and it seems such a fluffy area when we were - you know, 
and it is so easy to skirt away from as the Minister just did on this other particular item about 
redundancies, because a nebulous answer really means nothing. But in many of the things that they 
deal with within the Civil Service, it involves people being involved with other individuals and some 
of them in very intense situations, and where people are able to stand the buffeting of this type 
of involvement, when they're in their mid-twenties, and in their early thirties, there is, in management 
terms, burn-out - that there has to be some lateral escape for these people so that they can be 
given an opportunity to have meaningful employment and plan for that day when they will need 
to transfer their efforts to some other area. So, being forewarned by the nebulousness of the 
Minister 's answer relative to which she intends to do about redundancy, I wonder what she plans 
to do about burn-out of the staff? 
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MRS. PRICE: The Chairman here is giving me some answers to give to the member, to tell him 
that I am encouraging jogging amongst all the older members of the Civil Service; that's why I was 
grinning . 

All I can say is what I have said before, that we are working at studying the different departments, 
we are evaluating all the different programs, and I can only say at this point that this is the procedure 
we feel is necessary in order to get the best performance out of the departments. And with regard 
to what my colleagues have said, I can 't be responsible for what they say, nor did I hear what they 
said ; I haven 't been listening to their Estimates. But I know what we are doing in this department, 
and that's precisely what we are doing. 

MR. BOYCE: Well , Mr. Chairman, from this organizational chart that was given to us by the Minister 
entitled "Staff of Civil Service Commission ," I assume from this chart - and would the Minister 
coirect me if I'm wrong - that there are 10 personnel, professional personnel people deployed 

>~- to look after the problems of employees within the Civil Service. 

MRS. PRICE: Well, they have a few chores to consider. They are concerned with various aspects 
of job management, job analysis, any staffing problems that are - they all come under these officers. 
I don't know if the Member for Winnipeg Centre has noticed, one is from Thompson and one is 
from Brandon , so there's eight, actually, in Winnipeg . 

MR. BOYCE: Yes, Mr. Chairman , I noticed that. But is the Minister familiar with how many people 
are involved in delivery of personnel services within organizations in the private sector of comparable 
size? The present government is always fond of using, for example, the efficiency of the private 
sector. Can the Minister provide us with some figures to compare the capacity of an employer who 
has 12,000 employees with that which the Civil Service has deployed to resolve the problems relative 
to personnel? 

MRS. PRICE: I think that would be a little difficult, to get figures as a comparison with a company 
that has 12,000 employees. I understand our figures compare favourably with the other jurisdictions. 
Out of those 10 that you had mentioned, I mentioned that two were regional and there's a third 
that's a personnel assistant , which brings down the staffing officers to seven. No - one, two, three, 
four - six , and they process some 25,000 applications per year. 

MR. BOYCE: Yes, I realize that it's not something which would be extant, Mr. Chairman, a 
comparison between organizations in the private sector and the public sector, but nevertheless the 
present government has made much to-do about the big, fat Civil Service and I kept wondering 
about where all these bums were, because when I was in there I came across people always willing 
to go the extra mile. I don 't know how many companies around are doing a business of 1.6 billions 
of dollars delivered by a staff of some 12,000, or whatever it is, that would have a staff this thin. 
It would be very interesting for the Minister, if she doesn't know. A goodly number of people in 
the community have worked at Eaton's at one time or other, and I would suggest that Eaton's as 
one of the larger employers has a much larger staff than this relative to : personnel. Really what 
is under discussion, Mr. Chairman, is the staff which is dealing with all of the problems - hiring, 
firing and all the rest of it - relative to the Civil Service which delivers the programs of the 
government and we heard much by the present administration about the inefficiency of this Civil 
Service. When you are talking about 25,000 - this is the figure that the Minister used . . . As 
a Minister, Mr. Chairman, only once did I ever call for all of the applications relative to a particular 
bulletin , and I asked for them out of curiosity as to exactly how the people arrived at the decision 
to forward three names, which I agree with. The road back to Toronto goes back, so maybe a few 
more years from now that will go back to the rule of three, and if we have to put it in statute well , 
perhaps we should put it in statute, because I don't think the government should hide behind the 
fact that a political appointee is making the recommendation rather than the Ministers 
themselves. 

But Mr. Chairman , the file of applications that these people were required to deal with to make 
a judgment as to whom to recommend to the Minister to hire, is just fantastic. And the fact that 
the beast works at all is the miracle, because when you are talking about 25,000 applications for 
positions and these have to be evaluated, and it's time-consuming. There are eight people in the 
city of Winnipeg that are dealing with all of these staffing problems with the assistance from the 
people from the department who sit on the Boards or whoever is involved, and here is another 
example, Mr. Chairman, of the lie that was made by the present administration in the campaign 
that they went through this province, in kidding the people it was a big, fat Civil Service doing nothing. 
Here is another component: I have mentioned earlier that each Minister as they have stood in their 
place has said that there was no fat , that by som miracle they were going to be able to maintain 
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their programs by reducing the staff by - what is it? 39? - They've actually reduced it by 39. 
I'm going to use a new figure. If the Minister of Industry and Commerce can pull a figure out of 
the air and say, " A billion dollars has left the province," you know, I can pull out another figure 
at the other end of the scale and I'll say, "Thirty-nine civil servants have been actually reduced 
by this government." 

But to be somewhat more serious, it is all serious because it has become a farce. We started 
off with the task farce report and we get into this bunch of Estimates that were chipped and chopped 
and hacked long before any recommendations were forthcoming from this group of the elite who 
ran through the Civil Service looking for fat and looking for the rest of it. I think it should be underlined 
in the record , Mr. Chairman - I don't know most of these people, I know some of them because 
they worked in areas in which I had some responsibility - but it should be underlined that 10 people 
throughout the province are deal ing with 25 ,000 applications for positions. On top of that, all of 
the things which the Minister said she was going to do in her earlier statement, Mr. Chairman, that 
she was going to provide counselling service and she was going to talk to these employees and 
she was going to do all of these things, which is on the record what the Minister is going to do. 
The proof of the pudding is going to be in the eating. The proof of the figures that the Minister 
has used - and she will be right or wrong - will be in the Public Accounts and the Finance Minister 
has undertaken, last evening, to file in response to an Order for Return, print-outs of comparable 
pay periods so that we can monitor this from time to time. It's going to be very interesting, Mr. 
Chairman . 

I would close by expressing the opinion that in my view, the Civil Service Act has been 
circumvented in fact, but that will have to be determined by other than members of this committee. 
It possibly will have to follow that route and we will await the decision of the courts relative to that 
particular item. 

Mr. Chairman, I want to thank the Minister for answering the questions with the information which 
she has provided to us. Any question that we have asked she has tried to answer and really the 
candor of the Minister has, in my view, got herself into a little difficulty because she has tried to 
answer them. But, here again, we just underline the propaganda and false accusations of the present 
administration for no other purposes than to get elected ; they couldn 't fulfill their election promises. 
The information that they used was false. 

The Member for St. Matthews, it was very interesting, rose in the House the other day and said 
that politicians were held in ill-repute, or something, and we have do do something to raise the 
esteem of politicians and yet he is party to the presentation of information which cannot be 
substantiated . I'm making these statements now and I think time will prove my statement to be 
correct, that when the Public Accounts are actually printed, we'll find that the government is dealing 
with vacancy rates. But they're going to fill positions faster but they're going to be dealing by and 
large with the same numbers - 39 less I've suggested . 

Mr. Chairman, I, for one, and I don't know how many of my other colleagues want to speak 
on this but I would suogest that we pass all of the Estimates of the -(Interjection)- Well, my friend, 
the Member for St. George says, " No," and I want to disagree with my friend from St. George. 
I think we should pass all of these Estimates because the case is just going to be a repetition of 
the same case, point by point by point, figures which cannot be substantiated: 1,700 in the press; 
369, 452 and mine, 39 . So we will go through line-by-line and we will accomplish nothing . I think 
the press i tired ; I think we 're tired and I think the case has been made that the government cannot 
substantiate their charges that there was inefficiency within the Civil Service. 

I rest my case, Mr. Chairman. 

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for St. Vital. 

MR. WALDING: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I didn 't take any part in the discussion yesterday 
preferring to listen to my colleagues ask the questions. I was rather confused as to much of the 
discussion about Mr. Duncan and in talking it over with my colleagues and reading the press today, 
I would like to ask the Minister: Is Mr. Duncan still a member of the Civil Service 
Commission? 

MRS. PRICE: Yes, he is. 

MR. WALDING: The Minister gave us a couple of figures earlier this afternoon at the beginning 
of our discussion. I believe that she mentioned that Mr. Duncan according to an Order-in-Council 
on October 26th was demoted from his full-time position to a part-time position . Is that 
correct? 

MRS. PRICE: That's correct. 

4008 



Tuesday, June 20, 1978 

MR. WALDING: Was that demotion in effect as of that date? 

MRS. PRICE: Yes, it was but as was mentioned last night, these topics are to come up under 
the First Minister's Estimates. 

MR. WALDING: I would lik to refer to the letter that the Minister tabled this afternoon from a B.D. 
Scarsbrook to a Mr. M .. Myers concerning Mr. Duncan and which mentions a two-week payment 
in lieu of notice. Can the Minister tell the committee which two-week pay period that 
represents? 

MRS. PRICE: I couldn 't tell you but ... Are you not prepared to wait to ask these questions of 
the First Minister? These come under him and he is prepared to answer them and I would suggest 
that , as the Member for Winnipeg Centre said, all this has been gone over before; it's all repetitious 
and he is prepared to answer them and I am prepared to table a full report of all the figures so 
that nobody will be confused . After we have consul tation with Management Committee, the Task 
Force Minister and the Civil Service, I am prepared to give you a full report. 

MR. WALDING: I only had a couple of questions, Mr. Chairman , I don't believe that they were 
complicated but I believe that they would help to clarify the matter in my mind. I wonder if the 
Minister would be able to confirm that this two-week payment would be for the period beginning 
December 14th as suggested in the letter. 

MRS. PRICE: I haven't got the letter in front of me and I can 't answer that without speaking to 
the people in the treasury . . 
MR. WALDING: I could read it to the Minister. It says, "Enclosed please find payroll cheque (with 
a number) dated December 14, 1977 in the amount of $1,515.51 . This represents two weeks payment 
in lieu of notice." Now would the Minister assume that that would represent the two weeks following 
December 14th? 

MRS. PRICE: I'm not prepared to assume anything. I'd rather get the answer for you. 

MR. WALDING: Can the Minister tell the committee whether that amount of just over $1 ,500 
represents two weeksB pay for Mr. Duncan as a full-time member of the Commission? 

MRS. PRICE: I would presume that would be it. 

MR. WALDING: Then can the Minister tell the committee why the government was still paying Mr. 
Duncan as a full-time Commissioner at the end of December when his appointment in that position 
ceased on October 26th, two months previous. 

MRS. PRICE: I will go back to asking you to ask the First Minister these questions. 

MR. WALDING: Does the Minister not know, Mr. Chairman, is this the reason or does she not 
wish to tell the committee? 

MRS. PRICE: Well, Mr. Duncan either comes under one Estimate or another and the First Minister 
is prepared to answer being as how the time structure was such that it was one day after our taking 
office and I am suggesting that you ask him. They will come under him and he is prepared to answer 
them. 

MR. WALDING: The Ministe didn 't answer my question, Mr. Chairman. The question was: Does 
the Minister not know or is she not willing to tell us? 

MRS. PRICE: I don't know, that's why I'm saying I would suggest that you ask him and he will 
have the answers for you. 

MR. WALDING: That's fair enough, Mr. Chairman, thank you. 

MR. CHAIRMAN: In accordance with Rule 19(2), the hour of 4:30 having arrived, I am interrupting 
proceedings of the committee for Private Members' Hour. We will return at 8 o'clock.t. 

SUPPLY - NORTHERN AFFAIRS 
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MR. CHAIRMAN, Mr. Abe Kovnats: I would direct the honourable members to Page 64 in the book 
of Estimates, Northern Affairs and Renewable Resources and Transportation Services. We are on 
Resolution No. 95. 1.(c)(1) Salaries and Wages, $77,400-pass - the Honourable Minister. 

HON. KEN MacMASTER (Thompson): Mr. Chairman, in the spirit of co-operation that we have 
been having between myself and the members of the opposition in relationship to our Estimates, 
I would like to file with you for their observation the chart for the Administrative Support 
Services. 

MR. BOSTROM: My question on th is section is, I believe we are on 1.(c); is that correct? 

MR. CHAIRMAN: 1.(c)(1) Salaries and Wages. The Honourable Minister. 

MR. MacMASTER: Yes, if I could , Mr. Chairman, I'd like to answer a question that was raised 
I believe, by the ... I don 't want to interrupt, but I didn't know if I had the paper with me ... 
the Municipal unconditional grants - I think it was the Member for The Pas that raised it, or both. 
The source of the funding was the question and it turns out to be an excellent question because 
there is no real appropriation as we find it and I don't believe there was under any previous 
administrations. It 's moneys that is received by the Provincial Government from the Federal 
Government of taxes that are collected , turned over to the Municipal Affairs Department who in 
turn we tell them the amounts that are required and they then issue them. 

There was a question, a further one I believe, as to the amounts that were paid as an initial 
payment, I think I titled it last night. I don 't think there was any debate or question in relationship 
to whether that term applied . In the initial payment that was paid last year - and I would have 
to guess at it , it was during th summer months - the unconditional grant was $172,388.40 and 
the special grant was $26,658.00. That was to communities. I'll break that out because there's two 
groups involved here. 

To the bands, the Indian bands, the unconditional grant that was paid last year was $433,110 
and the special grant, Mr. Chairman, was $86,622.00. 

The other question that was asked as to how much is forthcoming after calculations. To the 
communities, Mr. Chairman, there's $23,766.40 that's still to come. To the Indian bands there's 
$138,760.80 that is still forthcoming , and I'd like to answer to the legitimate queries of the Member 
for The Pas as to when it's going out. We believe that it will be going out within 30 days. 

The other question, if not posed certainly will be, and again quite legitimately, when will 1978's 
be going out and that, Mr. Chairman, will be going out some time in August. Thank you. 

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Honourable Member for Rupertsland. 

MR. BOSTROM: Thank you , Mr. Chairman . The Assistant Deputy Minister appropriation that's 
before us, Salaries and Wages, can the Minister just explain what this all entails and who is the 
individual involved here? What are his responsibilities? Who reports to him and who does he report 
to in the organizational structure of your department? 

MR. MacMASTER: Mr. Chairman , there was a - and I say " was" . He's still certainly very alive 
but on the particular page in question we 're talking about an Assistant Deputy Minister, two 
secretaries and an Executive Assistant. The individual, the Assistant Deputy Minister, his secretary 
and his Executive Assistant have been seconded by the Department of Mines,particularly the Minister 
responsible, who is Chairman of the Cabinet sub-Committee on the settlement of Indian land claims 
for Manitoba. The Deputy Minister will be doing two things, will have two particular positions and 
doing many hundreds of things. The two positions are that he will head up an internal departmental 
working group of civil servants throughout our government. For example, there'll be representation 
from Lands, Renewable Resources, Northern Affairs, Mines, and possibly - yes, there is from the 
Attorney-General's office, and what he will be doing as Chairman of that group will be compiling 
the massive amount of documentation that we have going back some of it 20, 25, 30 years in 
relationship to a variety of types of Indian land claims settlements that are before us. That will be 
his one position. 

Coupled with that he will be Secretary to the Cabinet sub-Committee, and he has taken his 
secretary with him. He's taken his Executive Assistant with him. 

Now I' ll explain this. The Department of Mines had a vacancy that they have used to cover off 
the Deputy Minister's Executive Assistant so we have still that vacancy in our department. His other 
secretary who was left with us wi ll be working in another area which we haven't defined yet and 
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we will be carrying the position and the salary of both the Assistant Deputy Minister and his secretary 
with in our budget. Now you can understand it 's sort of confused and if you want me to elaborate 
on it or further specify I'll certainly try to. 

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Honourable Member for The Pas. 

MR. McBRYDE: Mr. Speaker, in light of the co-operative mood of the Minister I would find it a 
lot more useful if the Minister could give us the organizational chart of a section before we deal 
with the section or as we're dealing with the section as opposed to after we finish dealing with 
the section. Of course we wou ld have preferred to have the whole organizational chart at one time 
so we could fit everything in perspective but the Minister was not will ing to do that. 

I wonder for example if we could get a chart from him right away if they have it there to show 
where the Assistant Deputy Minister fits into the diagram and then if they would be prepared to 
have the Lands and Surveys Division chart available to us. I wonder if the Minister could do that 
for us. 

MR. MacMASTER: The Assistant Deputy Minister will be working with - as of two to three weeks 
ago he's really working with the Minister of Mines and is just assisting myself and our department 
in a walk-away sort of a situation and we will have the documentation that you' re referring to when 
we get down to the next section in the Estimates of the chart for that particular division. We'll give 
that to you as a further sign of our attempt to co-operate which is what you have asked for. 

MR. McBRYDE: Mr. Chairman, I can only then assume from the Minister's response that this 
Assistant Deputy Minister just no longer fits within the organizational chart; he doesn't really belong 
to the department any longer but he's just paid through this department. Is that correct ? 

MR. MacMASTER: Yes, that's corrett. 

MR. McBRYDE: Mr. Chairman, I would just like to get some clarification on the unconditional grants 
which the province pays to municipalities and part of which is paid as a growth tax or on an income 
tax basis, but is a provincial grant to municipal governments. I wonder if the Minister could explain 
when they had the figures available for the 1976 census and how come the funds have not yet 
been able to be made available to the communities? 

MR. MacMASTER: I'll take as notice exactly when we had the 1976 census, but again it was 
somewhat in dispute and we think that we've cleared that up and our own census that we have 
taken has now been completed . In comparing all the facts we find that the outstanding amounts 
owing are the $23,000 and $138,000 that I mentioned previously, and they'll be going out as I said 
within a month and the following , the 1978 ones will be going out very close to a month following 
that. 

MR. McBRYDE: I'm sorry, Mr. Chairman, I had a colleague distract me from the answer. The 
supplementary cheque or the final amount under the unconditional grant - when can the community 
councils and the Indian bands expect to have that money in hand? 

MR. MacMASTER: The final payment left over from the 1977 initial payment, if we will , will be 
going out within 30 days. Well, I can't tell you whether it 's 26, 27, 21, but very close. 

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Honourable Member for St. Johns. 

MR. SAUL CHERNIACK: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I'd like some clarification. The Honourable 
Minister said - I understood him to say - that the Assistant Deputy Minister is working really 
for the Minister of Mines, and my question is not related to who is the present Assistant Deputy 
Minister nor where he is working; I want to understand this Item 1. (c)(1). What sort of position 
will that be in the balance of this fiscal year? In other words where is the Deputy Minister's salary 
coming from? Will there be an Assistant Deputy Minister or how else are they going to expend 
the $77,400.00? 

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Honourable Minister. 

MR. MacMASTER: I already explained that, Mr. Chairman. 

MR. CHERNIACK: Mr. Chairman, I heard the Honourable Minister say that the ADM is working 
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for the Minister of Mines. I assume that he means that his present ADM is working for the Minister 
of Mines. My question is: Is the Deputy Minister's compensation coming out of this item that we 
are now dealing with? 

MR. MacMASTER: Yes, Mr. Chairman, as I said , I already answered that to the Member for 
Rupertsland - the precise question . 

MR. CHERNIACK: Mr. Chairman, I appreciate the fact that th is may have been answered before 
but some of us have other business to do as the Minister would well know and I believe that I 
can ask the quest ion as long as it' s not too extensive an answer. It would be just as quick, I think, 
to get the answer as to have it blocked by saying I've already answered it. So I understand that 
the Deputy Minister's salary is now the salary that comes under Item 1. (c)(1). What other staff is 
covered under Item 1. (c)(1). How many people? Has the Minister answered that as well? 

MR. MacMASTER: Yes, I have. 

MR. CHERNIACK Yes, well if he 's answered that , Mr. Chairman, then I assume that the Deputy 
Minister coming under that item would be the person who might be able to answer through the 
Minister the question of the capital expenditure that is being planned outside of what is in these 
Estimates before us. 

MR. MacMASTER: We'll get to the capital Estimates. If the member would look, it's No. 9, I 
believe. 

MR. CHERNIACK: Mr. Chairman , I do appreciate the fact that under No. 9 there's an expenditure 
of some $4.4 million . I asked the Minister what is planned to be expended and by whom over and 
above and beyond what is in these Estimates. 

MR. MacMASTER: Mr. Chairman , we're dealing with 1. (c)(1) and I'll answer questions on those 
and as we get to the other sections of the Estimates I'll be only too glad to do my best to answer 
the particular sect ions. 

MR. CHERNIACK: Mr. Chairman , I do appreciate the offer of cooperation by the Minister. I do 
believe that Item 1. (c)(1) is the Deputy Minister's salary. It doesn't say so but the Minister has now 
said that that is where the Deputy Minister's salary is and therefore I have to ask the Minister whether 
the capital expenditures that are being planned outside of these Estimates will come under the 
responsibility of the Deputy Minister. 

MR. MacMASTER: Mr. Chairman , 1. (c)(1) - I've explained what the particular individual is going 
to be doing . I've explained where his salary is coming from. I explained what his staff is going to 
be doing and I think that's quite sufficient. 

MR. CHERNIACK: Mr. Chairman , I understood the Minister to say that his Deputy Minister will 
be paid under Item 1. (c)(1). -(Interjection)- I misunderstood him, he says, Mr. Chairman. Then 
could he indicate just to have me better understand his Estimates just where the Deputy Minister's 
salary is? 

MR. MacMASTER: That's been passed . If the member would look he would see that (c) is Assistant 
Deputy Minister - see it? Assistant - As-s-i-s-t-a-n-t. That 's the Assistant Deputy Minister that 
we're talking about and I've explained three times. 

MR. CHERNIACK: Mr. Chairman, it 's good to know that the Minister knows how to spell. Of course 
it's made easier when he can read it off the sheet to tell us how well he can spell and I want to 
compliment him on at least some evidence of his education , but , Mr. Chairman, I have been waiting 
for the Deputy Minister's salary and I am looking at the Estimates. They're his Estimates, and I 
do not see a reference to a Deputy Minister in this salary, and therefore - or anywhere on this 
page. He says it's already been passed but I don't know where it has been passed and I don't 
know why the Minister is finding it so difficult to respond to what I think is a rather simple question. 
I thought that the Deputy Minister - that he said the Deputy Minister's salary was covered under ~ 
1. (c)(1). Now he says it wasn 't. Well , I accept the fact that I may not have understood him clearly. 
So I asked him where it does fit in. But now that he says it isn 't , that's it's under the ADM and 
he says the ADM works mainly for Mines and just does the odd th ing for him, then I have to ask 
the Minister how he's planning to spend the $77,400 .00. Now if he doesn 't know, or if he wants 
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to constantly refer to the fact that he may have answered the question earlier I can understand 
that. I can understand his problem but, Mr. Chairman , I, like other MLAs would like to be able 
to understand his Estimates, and if I can 't get his cooperation then it makes it rather difficult, doesn't 
it, Mr. Chairman? 

MR. CHAIRMAN: (c)(1)-pass - the Honourable Member for St. Johns. 

MR. CHERNIACK: No, Mr. Chairman , I would like to know whether the Minister claims that he 
has given the complete breakdown of the $77,400.00. If he has not, would he please do so. 

MR. MacMASTER: Yes, Mr. Chai rman. I feel I've given a complete breakdown of the salary and 
the people involved and where they'll be working and how they'll be paid. 

MR. CHERNIACK: Mr. Chairman , could the Honourable Minister please give me a breakdown of 
the $75,100 for last year comparable to this - the breakdown of what was estimated and also 
what was actually spent? 

MR. MacMASTER: The same four people were involved, the same four positions - a Deputy, an 
Execut ive Assistant , two secretaries. The only addition this year really is your increments, your general 
increments over what was there last year ' the same positions. 

MR. CHERNIACK: Mr. Chairman, you notice the Minister seems not to be clear on it. He said the 
Deputy. Now was it the Deputy or was it the Assistant Deputy? Which was it? He did say the Deputy, 
and then he claims that I didn 't understand clearly what he had said earlier. 

MR. MacMASTER: Mr. Chairman , I'm finding difficulty wondering what the presence of the individual 
member is. You know, if he wants to play semantics with words I guess we can, but I think we 
have some more important business to do on behalf of the people of Manitoba. 

MR. CHERNIACK: 6Mr. Chairman, the Minister should have realized long ago that had he 
answered in a straightforward way the rather simple questions I put we would have been past 
this item and we would have been beyond that, but if the Minister wishes to play around then 
that's his choice. He is the one who can answer questions. I can't answer them for him, but 
he is the one who could answer them if he wanted to, and why he is reluctant to do so is beyong 
my understanding, Mr. Chairman, but then I don't know this Minister very well, besides which 
it is not my role to understand him. My role is to try and understand his Estimates. He has 
absolutely refused to give me information which I've requested on Item 1. (c)(1), stating that 
he has already done so. I can understand that the Minister may, having done so while I was 
not present, may well have decided that he is not going to repeat himself lest he open up the 
question again. I can understand that. It may well be that the Minister doesn't want to go into 
this any further or it may be that he wants to prevent me from learning further about his plans 
for operating his department but, Mr. Chairman, if he thinks that that is a frrm of justifying his 
Estimates I must tell him that he's badly mistaken. He can if he likes put on an attitude of not 
caring. That is the impression I now get. I don't think he cares one bit whether I have the 
information or not and I assume that he doesn't care very much as to whether or not I can 
make a contribution to assessing the workload that he expects to carry in the coming year. 
That, of course, is his priv lege. But, Mr. Chairman, it does not redound to his credit to be taking 
an attitude such as he has already done. I must tell him that some of his own colleagues have 
had the courtesy of giving information of a rather simple nature more than once to those people 
who were not able to hear it the first time. However, the Minister wants to take this attitude, 
if he wants to change it, if he wants to give me the information I'd be glad to have it. If he 
doesn't want to give me the information then it stands on record that the Minister is refusing 
and pleading his effort to finish the work of government. Well, Mr. Chairman, he has a lot to 
learn about how one can proceed in a proper manner with one's Estimates so as to come to 
a conclusion. 

Now, Mr. Chairman, I don't know whether we're dealing with an Assistant Deputy Minister, 
who is going to be continued in the role or not, because I don't know where the Deputy Minister's 
salary is coming from. That has not been stated yet to my knowledge. Then I must assume that 
he is operating either without an Assistant Deputy Minister for the future or without a Deputy 
Minister for the future, and yet he has a Deputy Minister sitting in front of him, I'm told. 

Now, Mr. Chairman, the wages and salary which he says he's already broken down for us 
relate in some way to the wages and salary of the $75,100.00. Now I asked him to give me a 
breakdown of that. He d dn' t do that. I asked him to give me a breakdown of what was actually 
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spent. He didn't do that. And I'm wondering whether it was an oversight on his part or a deliberate 
refusal to give that information. 

MR. MacMASTER: Mr. Chairman, I haven't refused deliberately to answer anything. I was trying 
to cut out the repetition. The Member for St. Johns was sitting in his seat when I answered the 
question from the Member for Rupertsland, that there was an Assistant Deputy Minister, there was 
an Executive Assistant , there were two secretaries, and that their salary previously - the increase 
indicates a normal increase in salaries over the year, and that the Assistant Deputy and his secretary 
and his Executive Assistant will be seconded to the Department of Mines, specifically the Minister 
of Mines, and that the Minister of Mines has a vacant spot that he'll be filling with the Executive 
Assistant, and that we will be paying the salaries and holding the positions of the oteer two people, 
and the fourth person, the secretary - I think this is exactly what I said before and I have no reason 
to fear repeating it - the other fourth person will be assigned to other duties in time. 

MR. CHERNIACK: Well , Mr. Chairman, I want to thank the Minister and I want to point out to 
him how easy it was for him to save time by having answered me earlier than having to go through 
all this rigmarole in order to get to the same point we' re at now. I point that out only to indicate 
to him that he will find it much better to go through his Estimates if he is prepared to give information 
and to, if necessary, give it twice if it's not too extensive. 

Mr. Chairman, now, having listened I think carefully to what he said, I now have the impression 
that there is money being asked for in this resolution , which is going to be spent in the Department 
of Mines. There are apparently a couple of people at least whose salaries are going to be paid 
for by Northern Affairs, but who will be working for the Mines Minister. Will that then mean that 
they will be working in whatever premises are occupied by the Mines Minister; that they will not 
be occupying premises that come under the Northern Affairs Department? A secondment means 
a temporary assignment, for how long? Why aren't the Estimates so worked that the proper 
department has the proper expenditure? Are there any other items in these Estimates where the 
Northern Affairs Minister is asking for moneys to be use by another department? 

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Honourable Minister. 

MR. MacMASTER: Mr. Chairman , it's a combined effort of departments. I am a member also of 
the sub-committee in the establishment of Indian claims, and I have agreed with the concurrence 
of the people involved to allow the chairman of that particular committee, to utilize the services 
of these particular people. 

MR. CHERNIACK: That, Mr. Chairman , satisfies me. I now understand what is being planned and 
it's good to know that this is the way the plan is in operation. When will that committee be lining 
up its work? Is it a matter of months or years? 

MR. MacMASTER: It's rather difficult to answer the part cular question. As I said, some of these 
land claims are outstanding for many many years; there is such a large variety of circumstances 
surrounding a great number of them and we have to go back into history to establish the validity 
of a lot of them; it is going to take an extensive period of time. I would think, and I can't say, 
but I would suspect that in next year's Estimates, that this particular group would appear under 
somebody else's heading, maybe the Minister of Mines, if he's still chairman of that committee, 
maybe the Premier of the province would want to take them under his particular budgetary items. 
I don't know just exactly where that will fit in the forthcoming year. 

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Honourable Member for Rupertsland .to 

MR. BOSTROM: Mr. Chairman, in respect to this section here, seeing that the Assistant Deputy 
Minister has been planned for and budgeted for by this Minister, and now the Assistant Deputy 
has been seconded to another department for other duties, does the Minister intend to replace 
this individual with somebody who will carry out the duties that this person was planned to carry 
out during the course of this fiscal year under scrutiny? 

MR. MacMASTER: That 's under consideration, Mr. Chairman. I haven't made any specific moves 
and I can assure the members of this House that I haven't approached the Premier on any suggested " 
replacements at this particular time. The directors of the various divisions as we come to them that 
would have been reporting directly to that ADM will report straight through to the Deputy Minister 
on an interim basis until we establish just how workable that is and how the functions are, how 
we'll go about replacing them. 
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MR. BOSTROM: Mr. Chairman, just on the same point, what duties did the Minister have in mind 
for this particular individual for this position that is in his Estimates for the fiscal year 1978-79? 
What duties did he see this individual carrying out in the operation administration of his 
department? 

MR. MacMASTER: Mr. Chairman, there were areas that would have been reporting directly to the 
ADM , as I say, now on an interim basis. They are going to have to report straight through, and 
as we get to them, for convenience and understanding , we will put in the ADM's position, and 
we'll demonstrate how the director of that particular area will report straight through. 

MR. BOSTROM: If I heard the Minister correctly, it appears as though he has mae a plan here 
for his Estimates, a plan to have an Assistant Deputy Minister, who he has proposed to fund through 
the Estimates' process for this year. Now before the Estimates are even con idered by the House, 
the individual attached to that position has been seconded. Now the Minister is saying, well maybe 
we don't really need this position, so why did he put it in there in the first place? The other thing 
is, I understand from his comments in reply to the Member for St. Johns, it appears as though 
he is still leaving in here, in his department, funds for an executive assistant and a secretary. Now 
who will these people be reporting to if these positions are filled, if the incumbent is moved on 
to other duties in another department? 

MR. MacMASTER: I should clear up the inference that when the member left it hanging, that maybe 
there were some duties there. There certainly was some very specific duties for the ADM and our 
department is going to have to live with the fact that we don't him. I might add that that will be 
without a great deal of difficulty. But I can 't go back in history with the members opposite, or anybody 
else in this House, and ask how they have handled such a situation before; I am simply saying right 
here, that we are prepared to work without the particular Deputy Minister for a period of time to 
see how it works and what adjustments we will have to make. The three people, and there are 
three that are going, the ADM , his executive assistant, and his secretary, and they will all be working 
with him directly. And once again, the Department of Mines has a vacancy where they can cover 
off the executive assistant, and we will be carrying the salaries of the assistant deputy, and one 
of his secretaries. That position that is left with the executive assistant will be open; it is vacant 
at the moment, and the lady that is left behind as secretary will be reassigned other duties. 

MR. BOSTROM: Mr. Chairman, on that same point, what does the Minister intend to do with this 
vacant executive assistant position? If the person that the executive assistant was reporting to is 
no longer there, no longer involved with the department, why does he need this position, and why 
is it included in these Estimates? Why is it not struck out of the Estimates? 

MR. MacMASTER: There is consideration for that particular position being used in another area 
at the moment, and I would like to assure the Member for Rupertsland that these Estimates will 
not pass without me assuring him of where that position goes; or the ultimate, if the position is 
not reassigned in another particular area, I'll give consideration to removing the moneys that would 
have been in a position, before the conclusion of the Estimates. This has all happened, certainly 
not rather suddenly, but everybody is busy and we just haven't got around to specifically assigning 
that vacant position yet. 

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Honourable Member for The Pas. 

MR. McBRYDE: Mr. Chairman, I'm still not entirely clear. I want to understand, when we have 
finished these Estimates, the total staff complement and how it works. There were four lositions 
here; assistant deputy minister; executive assistant and two secretary positions. First question then, 
were all of those filled, were there people occupying those positions? And then, if the Minister could 
clarify, the ADM to be paid from here is definitely seconded to work on the Indian claims, as the 
Minister calls them, but the executive assistant, the person is being seconded but the position is 
staying . Is that correct? Is this position of executive assistant remaining with this department even 
though the incumbent is going to fill another vacant position? Then, I assume that both the one 
secretary - the persons in the position are both being seconded. Is that correct? But the second 
secretary, neither the position nor the person are moving; they are staying right here, and the Minister 
has to figure out what to do with that person in position now. 

MR. MacMASTER: Yes, to several of the questions. First, all four positions are in fact filled today. 
The department, I suppose, as any Minister would want if some of your people are being seconded 
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to another area, he would like the other area to have the money in the positions available within 
it. That was not the case. There was one vacancy within that department that the Honourable Minister 
of Mines found could accommodate the executive assistant, so I keep that position. I am responsible 
in these Estimates, for the salary and the positions of the ADM and the secretary. I am responsible 
for the salary and the position and the person of the second secretary, and I have now a vacant 
position because of the Minister of Mines having a vacancy where he accommodated the executive 
assistant , so that person is moved over, and I have a vacant posit ion. 

MR. McBRYDE: Mr. Chairman, we have here the figures that show the full salaries for four people, 
I assume, and basically what we have in government services is an increase of one. The Minister 
has transferred a person and he is keeping a position, so now he has one new position that he 
has available to him to fill. Is that correct? 

MR. MacMASTER: We're getting ourselves caught up I think in this. How can I say it another way 
that might explain it? There were four positions that were filled; two of those positions are gone, 
and I retained two positions. One of those positions that I have retained is vacant, and one is 
filled . 

MR. McBRYDE: Mr. Chairman, I wonder if the Minister could outline the duties of these four persons, 
what they have been, and what role they filled within the department, so we could have some 
understanding of what kind of holes it would leave if three of these four people are transferred 
- what was their basic function , or put it another way, how did they fit in the old organizational 
chart, Mr. Chairman? 

MR. MacMASTER: Mr. Chairman, Section 3. Fisheries and Wildlife, and Section 5. Southern Field 
Services, would have both been reporting directly to the ADM . 

MR. McBRYDE: I didn 't catch the last part of the Minister's answer. 

MR. MacMASTER: Section 3 and Section 5, Fisheries and Wildlife Division and the Southern Field 
Services Division, would have both been reporting directly to the ADM and his support staff would 
have assisted him in his duties in that particular area. 

MR. McBRYDE: So, Mr. Chairman, the assistant deputy minister, since that's a major part of the 
old Department of Resources, as I understand it, this was a major executive position that he is 
now going to get by without . I assume that his assistant's role was to assist him in those things 
and his secretary's role was to provide the secretarial service for that. Have the persons now at 
the head of those other two sections then been promoted, now that they are reporting directly to 
the Deputy Minister, I assume, although if I had the overall organization chart it would be helpful , 
now that they are reporting directly to th Deputy Minister, have they been promoted, in effect, because 
of the elimination of this one position? 

MR. MacMASTER: No, they haven't, Mr. Chairman. 

MR. CHAIRMAN: (1)-pass - the Honourable Member for Rupertsland . 

MR. BOSTROM: Thank you , Mr. Chairman . I find it somewhat strange, the whole affair, which we 
are witnessing in terms of the moving of this individual over to a position within the department, 
or reporting to the Minister of Mines and Resources. It seems to be following the pattern of this 
government in terms of carrying out a type of vindictive removal of all those people who were in 
senior executive positions in ei ther the Department of Resources or the former Department of 
Northern Affairs. Many of those individuals, particularly those who were within the Department of 
Northern Affairs , 1 understand , were put in the position of either having to resign , or resigning , and 
in this case, this individual appears to have been given the opportunity to move over to a rather 
much reduced position in terms of the responsibilities he will have in the public service of the 
Government of Manitoba. And , I say that because this individual , the incumbent who was filling this 
position in the past admin istration was responsibile not only for the sections the Minister mentioned , 
Nos. 3 and 5, and the southern region , he was responsible for the enti re renewable resources side 
of the Department of Renewable Resources and Transportation Services. All of the regions in the 
province that were made up of the regional field staff of the Department of Resources, reported 
directly to this individual. He has had many years experience in that department, was promoted 
up through the ranks , and it now appears as though, for whatever reason, this new administration 
is taking the position that they would much rather have this person not continue as a senior executive 
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person within the Department of Resources, but , in fact, to move him over to be responsible for 
a Research and Study Committee, which is reporting to the Minister of Mines. 

Now the Minister may make the excuse - and I call it an excuse, it's not a reason, it's an 
excuse - he may make the excuse that this was a decision of the government that there would 
be this Indian Land Claims Committee, and that he agreed to allow his Associate Deputy Minister, 
and that 's what this position was before, Associate Deputy Minister, and I note that the Minister 
refers to him as the Deputy Minister all the time, so he realizes, I believe, that this person was 
operating in a Deputy Minister capacity before the change in government. This person is now being 
removed from a position of major authority within the Department of Resources, and is moved over 
to be a co-ordinator of a study committee reporting to the Minister of Mines.' Now, whichever way 
you want to describe this, I see it as a deliberate move by this government, in terms of removing 
a senior executive person in the Department of Resources. 

And this government continues to set this precedent, which I believe has not been equalled 
anywhere in the history of the British Commonwealth, of a new government coming into power and 
removing all of the senior management people within the departments of government. And what 
is happening, Chairman, I believe, is that this government is bringing about the politicization of the 
Civil Service such as we've never seen before in Manitoba, and it's ironic, because this same group 
when they were sitting on this side of the House claimed that the New Democratic Government 
was bringing about a politicization of the Civil Service. And yet, if you look at the senior positions 
in the public service of Manitoba, during the term of office of the New Democratic Party, most of 
those positions - senior Deputy Ministers, Deputy Ministers, Assistant Deputy Ministers, and so 
on - were promoted up through the ranks. They were people, Mr. Chairman, who had many years 
experience in the public service of Manitoba, and who were recognized for their contributions and 
their capabilities, and were promoted on the basis of those contributions and capabilities. We now 
see those same people, Mr. Chiirman, who have served the public of Manitoba with distinction, being 
given the back of this government's hand, in the way in which they treat them. 

1 spoke last night on the Assistant Deputy Minister, who was in charge of the Administrative 
Division of the department, and the Minister had to agree with me that that particular individual 
served the public of Manitoba with distinction for over 20 years of public career in the Province 
of Manitoba. This individual who was the incumbent in the section we are now considering, was 
an individual, I believe, who started his career in the public service of Manitoba under the Progressive 
Conservative administration in the Sixties, and I believe he served that government and the New 
Democratic Party government with distinction, and in a non-political role, in a senior public service 
role, as a non-political public servant. Mr. Chairman, to take the kind of action that this government 
is obviously taking, they are setting what I believe to be a precedent in Manitoba, and certainly 
a precedent in the British Commonwealth system of government, where it is an accepted practice 
for the senior administrators of various departments to continue from government to government; 
regardless of the change of government, the senior people continue to provide that public service 
continuity, and t!'lat it also gives opportunity for individuals who want to enter the public service, 
a reasonable sense or feeling of security that they will not be replaced every four years, every time 
there is a change in government. Mr. Chairman, the actions of this particular provincial government 
are changing that system. They are making all the senior officers, senior people in every department 
in government a mark, Mr. Chairman, they are making them a mark in the sense that they are saying, 
"We are going to remove all of those people who were in any way directly connected to the senior 
management of the New Democratic Party government, and we are going to put in our 
people." 

Well, Mr. Chairman, when you do that, when the Ministers of this government do that, when 
they remove somebody who is in a senior position now, on the basis that they think that person 
was political, and they put somebody in that is obviously their choice, they are naming that person 
as a political person , Mr. Chairman. And unfortunately, each one of those individuals who are in 
those positions, are going to be, I think, quite nervous and justifiably so, because the precedent 
has been set whereby the government has removed the senior officers in the various government 
departments, and put people in that they believe are more politically inclined to their way of thinking. 
In doing this, Mr. Chairman, they have politicized the Civil Service such as it has never been politicized 
before - it has never been politicized like this before. Because, Mr. Chairman, when the New 
Democratic Party government was elected in 1969, I think that many people were, if anything, critical 
of the New Democratic Party government for not removing certain key people in the senior Deputy 
Minister positions. And they continued the British Parliamentary government practice of maintaining 
the senior public servants in their positions, in fact, Mr. Chairm~n. some people who had served 
as Executive Assistants for Conservative Ministers during the Conservative term of office, were 
recognized for their capabilities of a public service and a civil service nature and were promoted 
within the service. 

I believe the Deputy Minister of Urban Affairs was previously a Conservative Executive Assistant, 
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and he was recognized by this government - he wasn 't given the back of the government's hand 
when the government came into office - he was given the opportunity to serve his province in 
the public service of Manitoba. He was given the opportunity to prove that he could be a capable 
and loyal public servant , and he did so. He served witb distinction , and he was promoted for his 
capable efforts into a senior public service position in the Province of Manitoba. And, Mr. Chairman, 
there's no need for the government to remove an individual like that if the government changes 
office, just as there's no need, there was no need for the present Minister to remove the senior 
executive officers from the Department of Northern Affairs, or the senior executive officers from 
the Department of Resources, because when he did so, Mr. Chairman, he said that these fellows 
are not, in his opinion, of his political persuasion. 

I say, Mr. Chairman , that he is in some kind of dream world because these people were never 
political. The former Assistant Deputy Minister in charge of the section on Finance and Administration 
was not a political person. He had served at least three administrations, as I've mentioned already. 
The Associate Deputy Minister, who was at a Deputy Minister level, who was in charge of the 
Resources side of the Department of Renewable Resources and Transportation Services was not 
a political person, and yet these people, Mr. Chairman, are given the back of this government's 
hand. They are either offered an opportunity to take other positions that are not as attractive as 
the one they have, or they are given the opportunity to resign from office. 

Mr. Chairman, I say that this is a political move by this government, it's a straight political move 
because it has nothing to do with capabilities, it has nothing to do with the abilities or capabilities 
of the individuals involved. It's a political move where this government,this Minister is taking these 
people out of these senior positions and he's putting his people into these positions. And, Mr. 
Chairman, even though he may be taking people who are not so-called political at the present time, 
and he's putting them into senior government positions. unfortunately, Mr. Chairman, te's putting 
a mark on these people, because he's chosen to do it in this fashion. He's taken the set of individuals 
and senior officers who were in place when the New Democratic Party government was in power, 
he said that these people must be political and he moved them out, and following the same line 
of reasoning he's put people in who, in his opinion, must be political, they must be his political 
people. That is the impression that is left with the public of Manitoba, and with the opposition, Mr. 
Chairman. 

And what this leaves open, it leaves open the same kind of disruption to the public service in 
the future when governments change in Manitoba, because this kind of precedent has been set 
- this kind of precedent has been set by this government. 

Mr. Chairman, you can 't have it both ways. This government, this Progressive Conservative Party 
in the Province of Manitoba, when they sat on this side of the House, made pious statements about 
a non-political public service, and they made statements about the New Democratic Party government 
politicizing the civil service, and you had the leader of the Progressive Conservative Party making 
statements about civil servants not having anything to fear from the election of a Progressive 
Conservative government, that they believed in a non-political civil service. Well, Mr. Chairman, what 
a joke. What a joke this is when you see this action, the kind of action that this government has 
taken. Before they even got into office they dismissed three Deputy Ministers, and after they got 
into office they reooved in this department that is under consideration right now, as an example, 
they removed all the senior officers within the Department of Northern Affairs, all of them. The 
removed the senior Administrator, the Assistant Deputy Minister of Administration who served the 
Mines and Resources Department and the Department of Renewable Resources with distinction for 
over 20 years. 

Mr. Chairman, I see with this section that is under consideration right now, they are removing 
another individual, another senior officer. Mr. Chairman , this i not somebody who was hired by 
the New Democratic Party Government. He was working there when the New Democratic Party 
Government came into office. He rose through the ranks through promotions and eventually, because 
of the distinctive service that he provided to the Province of Manitoba, he was promoted to the 
positior of Associate Deputy Minister, and served that position with distinction as well. Mr. Chairman, 
he served the Government of Manitoba loyally and he would have served this administration 
loyally. 

Any one of those individuals that were in those senior executive positions were career civil 
servants, people that looked to the Civil Service as a lifetime career of service to the public, whether 
it be the public of Manitoba or the public of Canada. They had worked in various levels in the public 
service, whether federal or provincial. 

1 find the action by this government really shocking in the way in which they have mismanaged <t. 
the public service, the way in which they have mismanaged the senior executive positions of the 
various departments in this government, and this department that is before us right now is a good 
example. 

1 want to read from this letter which I have a copy of, which was put out by one of the Progressive 
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Conservative candidates during the election campaign, and it is from the campaign headquarters 
of Hugh McDonald , P.C. Fort Rouge, and he says: 

"Dear Friend: I have been knocking on a great many doors and talking to a great many people 
about the October 11th election. Both myself and my volunterr election workers have encountered 
a large number of Manitoba civil servants who believe it is time to change the government, but 
who have concerns about their job security if the Progressive Conservative Party is elected ." 

He says in the next paragraph , Mr. Chairman, and I want this to be very clearly understood, 
and I quote: " The fact is no civil servant needfear a Progressive Conservative Government. We are 
pledged to end the abuses and the patronage of the NDP, but we understand that Manitoba has 
a basically sound and good public service and believe it is important to preserve it for the good 
of everyone in the province. 

" Any reductions in the total number of public employees will be made through attrition 
only." 

Mr. Chairman, I read from a letter which was attached to this one, which comes from the 
Progressive Conservative Party of Manitoba, Office of the Leader. Th s letter is addressed to Mr. 
Hugh McDonald, the same individual that I mentioned in the previous letter, and the key paragraph 
here, Mr. Chairman, of note is that the letter which is signed by Sterling Lyon as Leader of the 
Progressive Conservative Party, says that " any reductions in the numbers of public servants in 
Manitoba will be achieved by attrition. We have no intention of dismissing people who are doing 
a good and conscientious job for the people of Manitoba." 

Mr. Chairman , what a joke. They make these kinds of statements during the election campaign 
to salve the worries and concerns of people in the Province of Manitoba, and when they get into 
government they do exactly the opposite. Mr. Chairman, the most shocking thing is the kind of 
politicization that they are making of the senior officer positions in the Province of Manitoba at 
the present time. 

Mr. Chai rman, they are setting a precedent in this province which I say will have dangerous and 
serious consequences for the careers of public servants in the Province of Manitoba as we change 
governments in this province. 

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Honourable Minister. 

MR. MacMASTER: Mr. Chairman , I suppose we have heard one of the most ridiculous and 
threatening statements to have been made in the House in a good period of time. 

The particular Assistant Deputy Minister that we are talking about apparently isn't the same one 
that the Member for Rupertsland is talking about, because we have a great deal of good feelings 
about this particular man and a great deal of faith in his ability and his qualifications and the fact 
that he has a history of dealing in wildlife and dealing out in the outlying areas, and dealing with 
the native people within this province, is one of the major reasons that he is holding the position 
he is today. 

We have a lot of faith in him and we will continue to have that faith in him, and whether it is 
a promotion or a demotion I suppose is open for question. He was an Assistant Deputy Minister 
in a particular department. He is now the secretary of a Cabinet Sub-Committee answering to three 
Ministers, as their secretary. He is chairing up a very professional group of civil servants who will 
be pulling together all the facts and figures relating to land claims, Indian land claims in this province 
that go back many years. 

I would suggest that if the Member for Rupertsland is laying an insignificant tag to the fact that 
the Indian land claims have been outstanding for all these years, if that is insignificant, then I don't 
bel ieve it particularly is, and I don 't think any provincial or national jurisidiction in our country lays 
claim to the fact that that is something insignificant. I think it should be recorded that the member 
feels that it is insignificant and that this particular government puts a lot of faith in the particular 
individual and a great deal of importance into the committee that he is handling. 

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Honourable Member for Rupertsland. 

MR. BOSTROM: Mr. Chairman, I think that 's a pretty shoddy and weak kind of response to the 
outline that I gave of this Minister's and this government's performance in office, in terms of their 
removal and dismissal and transfer of the senior officers in the deaartment. He can't put a tag on 
this individual as only one of the ones that has been removed since there have been a number 
of people, in fact all of the senior executive people within the Department of Northern Affairs, were 
removed outright. The Assistant Deputy Minister in charge of Finance and Administration was offered 
an opportunity to retire, which he took, and I believe it is probably because he didn't want to work 
for this rag-tag bunch that don't know how to run a government and treat the Civil Service with 
contempt - the very people that are supposed to be carrying out, that are t rying to carry out the 
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policies and programs of your government - you treat them with contempt. 

MR. CHAIRMAN: Order please. In accordance with Rule 19(2) I am interrupting the proceedings 
for Private Members' Hour and will return at the call of the Chair .m 

100PRIVATE MEMBERS' HOUR 

MR. SPEAKER: Order please. We are now in Private Members ' Hour. Adjourned Debates on Second 
Reading of Private Bills: On the Proposed Motion of the Honourable Member for Brandon East, 
Bill No. 17, An Act to amend An Act to Incorporate the Brandon General Hospital - the Honourable 
Member for Gladstone. 

MR. FERGUSON: Stand, Mr. Speaker. 

SECOND READING - PRIVATE BILLS 

BILL NO. 34 - AN ACT TO EXEMPT 
THE 00-ZA-WE-KWUN CENTRE INCORPORATED 

FROM CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE LIQUOR CONTROL ACT 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for Virden. 

MR. MORRIS McGREGOR presented Bill No. 34, An Act to exempt the 00-ZA-WE-KWUN CENTRE 
INCORPOTED from certain provisions of The Liquor Control Act for second reading. 

MOTION presented. 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for Virden. 

MR. McGREGOR: Mr. Speaker, 00-ZA-WE-KWUN is the new name of the old Rivers Airbase. There 
is four or five real firms there, four companies plus an Indian Training Centre - Sekine, the Japanese 
bicycle plant ; Tim-br-fab; Edson Trailer and Arnold Industries. 

The problem has been that the Officers' Mess is a very nice place and it caters to many dinners 
and the bill will do similar to what the CNR Training Centre at Gimli presented by the Honourable 
Member for Gimli some years back. 

The problem is that they do cater to sometimes an organization that wants a five-day-permit, 
so then they have to search someone to get a three-day-permit or a casual liquor permit , and 
someone else to finish out the additional two days. 

Also it is a matter when they get a short notice they hardly have lead time to get to Winnipeg 
and get that permission. For an example, the Canadian Rural Mental Health Association of Canada 
- well then they have to search who is the executive from Montreal to be responsible for that 
group. 

I can say, Mr. Speake , that I do attend quite a few dinners during any twelve months of my 
career and I probably go to dinners at that particular centre more than any other one, because 
they have an eating place that is there all the time. It does save a lot of work and a lot of continued 
correspondence to do that. 

It is just a very similar move, as I said earlier, to the Gimli one. So I just say that I would like 
to advance this to the Committee stage, Mr. Speaker. 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for Kildonan. 

MR. FOX: Mr. Speaker, I beg to move, seconded by the Honourable Member for Brandon East, 
that debate be adjourned . 

MOTION presented and carried. 

ADJOURNED DEBATES ON SECOND READING - PUBLIC BILLS 

BILL NO. 5 - AN ACT TO AMEND THE LIQUOR CONTROL ACT 

MR. SPEAKER: On the Proposed Motion of the Honourable Member for Emerson, Bill No. 5, An 
Act to amend The Liquor Control Act - the Honourable Member for Inkster. 

MR. SIDNEY GREEN: Mr. Speaker, I wish to have this matter stand, but I understand that there 

4020 



: 

Tuesday, June 20, 1978 

are other members who might wish to speak on it at the present time. 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for Churchil l. 

MR. JAY COWAN: Thank you, Mr. Speaker. I rise at this occasion to speak in support of the 
amendment put forth by the Member for Winnipeg Centre in regard to this bill. For as I interpret 
that amendment, I welcome it as an opportunity to review, an opportunity that for myself personally 
is appropriate and is necessary. For while this may be a perennial issue to many or perhaps I should 
say to most of the members in th is House, it is a new issue for myself, Mr. Speaker. It is a new 
issue not only as a legislator but also personally for, quite frankly, I had not given the subject much 
thought in the past , not because it was not an important subject but only because it had not been 
a pertinent subject in my own realm of experience. 

o in an attempt to more fully understand the problem that has been put before us so that I 
can hopefully more fully understand the solution to that problem, I have listened quite intently to 
the debate in the House and out of the House, Mr. Speaker, I have read , studied the Hansards, 
the comments of the members opposite and of my colleagues in regard to this debate. I have studied 
my correspondence that has come across my desk as a legislator, both pro and con. There has 
been both and it has been interesting and informative. I have talked to, or I should say I have more 
importantly listened to 18-year-olds, 19-year-olds, 20, 21 , 40, 45, 65-year-olds. I have listened to 
anybody who would take the time to explain to me their own views on this subject. I have perhaps 
put as much effort personally into this one issue as I have put on any other issue that has come 
before this House this session and I have to admit quite honestly, Mr. Speaker, I did so because 
I knew so little about this particular issue. Quite frankly, after all that time, after all that study, I 
still don't know what is the right course of action in this case. I am not sure that anyone in this 
House could rise at this moment and categorically state that 18 is a proper age for legal drinking 
or that 19 is a proper legal drinking age or that any age is a proper legal drinking age. We are 
all speaking - and I don't think I'm out of place in saying that - we are all speaking and eventually 
voting from a totally personal perspective on this bill. In this case, although it is not always the 
case and I want to make that clear, but in this case we are voting more with the heart than the 
head. I believe that in this particular case, Mr. Speaker, that that is not detrimental to the issue 
at hand for if we are to follow the debate, if we are to study the rationale and if we are to interpret 
the logic of those arguments that have been put before us on this one particular bill, both in this 
session and in sessions past, then we are to go around and around and around in circles only to 
return, after all that effort, only to come back to that place where each of us started as 
individuals. 

Those debates, to my mind, Mr. Speaker, have been of three kinds and to paraphrase, or perhaps 
even to pervert a time-honoured quote, " They are the best of arguments and they are the worst 
of arguments," and I have listened intently to both the good and the bad arguments of my colleagues 
seeking a key. I have done so because I honestly and sincerely sought the answer to this problem 
that is before us. Although I may accept some of the premises of some of those arguments more 
than others, no one single argument has been conclusive, no one single argument stands alone 
in my mind as that key or that solution, no one single argument in this case has been definitive 
enough to allow me to stand here and syy I know what is correct; I know what is right on this 
issue. 

But to return to those three types of arguments. The first of the three types is what I would 
call " I Know A Friend ," syndrome or argument and that, Sir, is an exceedingly personal debate 
as if we can somehow extrapolate effective and comprehensive legislation from a chance encounter 
or from a single incident, as if we can legislate on the basis of gossip and not fact. This line of 
logic, Mr. Speaker, has been used for both the pros and the cons of the bill before us. We've heard 
about the 18-year-old bride who was unable to drink at her own wedding if this bill is implemented 
and passed . Then we hear about the 18-year-old entrepreneur, the free trader, the capitalist -
and those are the words, I think, the memeer of the Opposition in his debate used - setting up 
a parking lot bar and therefore we should vote against this bill. So, as I say, this type of debate 
has been used to illustrate both philosophies at hand. 

The second type of debate is one that is quite personally more to my liking, it is one that 1 

prefer to use in most cases, and that is the statistical approach or, instead of "I Know A Person" 
argument, it is " I know a lot of persons" arguments. It is taking all those chance encounters and 
trying to lump them into one common denominator from which we can legislate. Although I normally 
favour this type of approach , Mr. Speaker, in this case I feel it is inadequate for there are certain 
criteria when using that approach that must be met. The statistics must be complete and they should 
not be contradictrry or at least one set should be more relevant to the person than another or 
more accurate than the others. In this case, Mr. Speaker, I would suggest that is not the case or 
at least I have not perceived that to be the case. We have seen local surveys done by members 
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of this House - and I appreciate their effort and I appreciate learning of the results of those surveys. 
We have heard the results of informal discussions held by members of this House with their 
constituents , with 18-year-olds, discussions that I myself have held. As I appreciate the results of 
the informal surveys, I also appreciate finding out what some others feel about this problem. We've 
also listened to published statistics that were meant to prove one case or another and used quite 
ably and adequately but , in this case, in this instance, Mr. Speaker, I do not feel that any of those 
were complete enough to stand alone or to prove the caseof what the legal drinking age in Manitoba 
should be. 

As the Member for Emerson stated in his opening remarks - and in this instance I agree 
wholeheartedly with him - he said that statistics show that nobody gains anything by being exposed 
to liquor. Being a non-drinker myself , Mr. Speaker, I not only would have to agree but I would have 
to second that. I personally feel that, that statistics in this case show that nobody gains by being 
exposed to liquor. But I do not think that that proves the case that we should have a 19 age limit 
versus an 18 age limit. So in this instance, Mr. Speaker, I find the statistical arguments lacking. 
I find them lacking in both clarity and in completeness. 

So we are led to the third type of argument which is an argument that I don't usually take but 
in this case bears some consideration and that is the philosophical approach to this question. We 
find members saying , " I will vote for anything that completes a specific purpose, " and we find 
members saying, "I will vote against anything that completes a specific purpose." While this is an 
efficient , a highly efficient and a highly effective line of logic, as with everything else, as with all 
that exists beneath this sun , it does not suit every subject and I believe, or I perceive, that it does 
not suit this subject. 

So listening to the debate, reading the Hansard , studying the others' arguments, all that effort 
- and I repeat, I have put a fair amount of time and effort into this problem - all that effort 
leaves me high and dry and no closer to the solution than when I began . So I welcome this opportunity 
to reassess the information; I welcome this amendment put forth by the Member for Winnipeg Centre 
for that reason. 

For more personal and in this case, Sir, probably more selfish reasons than for philosophical 
reasons, I welcome it because it gives us time - or gives me time, I should say, Mr. Speaker -
to more adequately peruse the subject , a subject which I have not been able to come to grips with, 
I think not so much for lack of effort but just for lack of concrete definitive arguments either pro 
or con. 

I will welcome this amendment even more if the six months that are stated in that amendment 
were used to develop educational and enforcement mechanisms to deal with the problem at hand, 
for in all that has been said in this debate, there is one statement that I feel we can all agree with 
and 1 feel that we do all agree with and that is that education and enforcement of the legislation 
that exists is necessary. Regardless of what the legal drinking age is, there will be problem drinkers 
of all ages. The fact is, Mr. Speaker, that we cannot legislate the proper use of alcohol as much 
as we may want to or as much as we may attempt to. The sad fact is that we cannot do it. We 
cannot legislate away alcohol abuse. As a matter of fact, Mr. Speaker, those at which that type 
of legislation is aimed at will be affected the least by that type of legislation. The problem drinker 
will drink regardless of the legislation we put forth , whether that drinker be 18, 19, 21, 45, 55, 65 
or 70. We can make it more difficult , we can legislate difficulty for that person, ze can make it 
illegal for that person to abuse alcohol but by legislation alone we will not and we cannot stop 
them from abusing alcohol. 

So, to my way of thinking , Mr. Speaker, this bill will not stop the 18-year-old problem drinker 
from drinking and 1 would suggest that in all the examples that have been put forth before us during 
this debate, that is who this bill is aimed at. It is not aimed at the 18-year-olds who can adequately 
handle their liquor or can drink with some degree of sophistication and maturity, it is aimed at the 
18-year-old problem drinker and I do not, I cannot see - and I may be proven wrong, I say that 
quite frankly and quite bluntly aware of the consequences, I may be proven wrong, but I have not 
been to date - 1 cannot see how making it illegal for those problem drinkers to drink will in any 
way solve their problem or will in any way cure their abuse of alcohol. 

So while 1 welcome the opportunity to review the situation, the opportunity presented by the 
amendment from the Member for Winnipeg Centre, I welcome that opportunity so that I may acquaint 
myself more with facts, so 1 may acquaint myself with more information, to reassess my own position , 
not with the purpose of coming up with a different assessment but just so I can further prove to 
myself that my arguments are valid and that my arguments are legitimate arguments. So while I 
welcome that, I feel that while standing and speaking to the amendment on the bill I have to state 
that if I were forced now, Mr. Speaker, to vote that I would have to vote against this bill that is 
before the House. I would have to do so, Sir, for the arguments I have given because I consider 
it too narrow, consider it not to address itself to the real problem that confronts us, the problem 
of the person who abuses alcohol no matter what their age may be. I think that we should use 
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the six months that are indicated in the amendment to develop and to implement educational 
mechanisms and enforcement mechanisms so that when we argue this case once again before this 
House, we are equipped with more facts and we are better acquainted with the true situation. Thank 
you. 

~ MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for Selkirk. 

MR. PAWLEY: Mr. Speaker, I welcome this opportunity to say a few words pertaining to this bill 
introduced by the Member for Emerson . I also wish to indicate that I appreciate the fact that the 
Member for Winnipeg Centre has proposed a six-month hoist in respect to this particular bill because 
it is one that certainly requires much more evaluation than that which has been given . I would like 
to raise with the Member for Emerson different anomalies that will develop insofar as the law is 

> concerned if, in fact, his proposal was to be passed by this House. For example, in Manitoba at 
the present time, the age insofar as one that is charged with any offence being tried in adult court 
is 18 and over. If one is to be tried in the juvenile courts, one is under the age of 18. 

Now the honourable member is proposing by way of this legislation, Mr. Speaker, that the aee 
for drinking in Manitoba be raised to 19. So we have a situation by which the age of adults being 
t ried in the courts, 18, that by which it is illegal to consume alcoholic beverages, 19 in the Province 
of Manitoba. So, Mr. Speaker, I ask you, what is the situation pertaining to one who at the age 
of 18 is charged with having consumed liquor under the age of 19, unlawfully, according to the 
law which the Member for Emerson proposes? Well , Mr. Speaker, what would happen is that that 
ind ividual would be t ried in the adult courts in Manitoba; he would be tried as an adult; he would 
have the full weight of the adult court reg istered against him; he wou ld not be tried as a juvenile. 
And yet , Mr. Speaker, by the very measure which is proposed by the Honourable Member for 
Emerson, he is proposing to treat the individual in question, not like the balance of the population 
in Manitoba, as an adult, but in fact he proposes to treat that individual, because he has not yet 
reached 19, as a minor and as a juvenile. And yet he would subject that individual to the adult 
courts. 

Mr. Speaker, surely if the law is to be respected and appreciated then it must be respected 
and appreciated in order to be obeyed. And if we permit the law to be woven with anomalies of 
this form , if we permit the law to be riddled with inconsistencies and irrationality, and certainly there 
are already sufficient of those, then, Mr. Speaker, I submit that the public will not obey or respect 
that law to the detriment of society as a whole. And what the proposal by the Member for Emerson 
would do by way of the present wording of the bill is certainly to bring ridicule upon the law. 

Mr. Speaker, insofar as The Age of Majority Act is concerned , and as has been mentioned earlier, 
one is permitted to do all forms of things; one is permitted to vote, to enter into contracts and 
to drink now in the Province of Manitoba at the age of 18, but the Member for Emerson would, 
by this measure, indicate to the 18-year old, "Yes, you may enter into commercial transactions 
involving many thousands of dollars in the Province of Manitoba; you may acquire a house; you 
may purchase a farm; you may enter into mortgage agreements; you may be sued under those 
contracts. ' ' 

A MEMBER: You can be an MLA. 

MR. PAWLEY: Yes, and you could even sit as a member of this Assembly. But on the other hand, 
we will not permit you to consume alcoholic beverages. Certainly again we have an instance where 
ridicule would be heaped upon the existing law in the Province of Manitoba, I think to the detriment 
of that very law which I am sure the Member for Emerson ought to be most concerned about it 
being respected . In addition, Mr. Speaker, we have the anomaly, which I would like the Member 
for Emerson to address himself to since he is a backbench MLA in the governing party of the Province 
of Manitoba, of where it is my understanding the Alcoholic Foundation of Manitoba, its budget has 
been reduced by 33.2 percent this year , a foundation which has been established in order to deal 
with problems relating to alcoholic consumption to help those that require assistance in the Province 
of Manitoba. 

But I wonder, Mr. Speaker, if the Member for Emerson has expressed his protests, has registered 
his criticism of the government of which he is a member, about the fact that there have been sharp 
cuts in this area? Mr. Speaker, if the Member for Emerson is to be consistent, if he is to be rational 
in his approach , then surely h should be addressing himself to the fact that his government is 
emasculating programs wh ich are geared towards attempting to deal with the problems of alcoholism 
in the Province of Manitoba, rather than bring to this House, Mr. Speaker, provisions which 1 fear 
will be not respected by the vast majority of Manitobans; provisions which will be unenforceable, 
provisions which in the final analysis will do nothing in order to address themselves to the problems 
which every member in this House shares, the negative effects of alcohol ism on Manitobans. 
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So, Mr. Speaker, let the Member for Emerson address himself, rather than coming into this 
Chamber as a member of less than six months and pretending that he has a significant answer 
to the problems of . . . 

MR. SPEAKER: Order please. May I suggest to the honourable member that he address himself 
to the amendment that 's before us. 

MR. PAWLEY: Mr. Speaker, my comments dealt very much with the bill before us, and the 
amendment deals with the bill. I am addressing myself to the reasons why that bill should not be 
passed at this time but should be the subject of review as proposed by the Member for Winnipeg 
Centre. I do not know, Mr. Speaker, how my comments cou ld have been more pertinent to the 
matters that are before us. So, Mr. Speaker, to ru sh forward in support of the bill by the Honourable 
Member for Emerson would, I believe, create more problems rather than remove problems in 
Manitoba. I do belieVe that with a six-month period, if the government of the day wishes to seriously • 
address itself to the problems of alcoholism in Manitoba, they can provide to us suggestions and 
proposals and recommendations which will be much more meaningful and much more in the interests 
of all Manitobans than what I regret to say, Mr. Speaker, is rather - well, I just have to say, Mr. 
Speaker, a rather useless bit of legislation that has been proposed to this Chamber by the Member 
for Emerson. 

MR. SPEAKER: The bill is standing in the name of the Honourable Member for Inkster. 

BILL NO. 6 - THE FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT 

MR. SPEAKER: On the proposed motion of the Honourable Member for Fort Rouge, Bill No. 6 
- the Honourable Member for Winnipeg Centre. Stand? The Honourable Member for Winnipeg 
Centre. 

MR. BOYCE: My apologies, Mr. Speaker, I had adjourned this on behalf of the Member for 
Selkirk. 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for Selkirk. 

MR. PAWLEY: Mr. Speaker, I find more difficulty contending with this particular bill than the bill 
previous, that the bill which is before us is one which I believe has the seeds of problems which 
would confront us as legislators in many ways. Certainly the Member for Inkster dealt with many 
of those problems - as well as did the Member for Morris. I do believe, Mr. Speaker, insofar as 
members of the Legislature, that basically if we wish, we have at our disposal the facilities and the 
rules of this Hous - that in the main , we are able to obtain such information as we reqsire, and 
if we don 't obtain that information when reasonably requested for, then certainly the members of 
the government in the end result are accountable for their refusal to provide information through 
the electoral process. So that I do not have too much concern , Mr. Speaker, insofar as the making 
available of information to members of the Legislature. I believe that those instruments and facilities 
are now available to us, and as to whether or not they are responded to, depends upon the 
government of the day, and the electorate will decide. 

I do have an area of concern , Mr. Speaker, that has continued to plague me - and it maybe 
that my concerns are not justified, but I am finding myself in some sympathy with a certain portion 
of the legislation before us that deals with the average citizen . Due to the fact that the machinery 
and the bureaucracy of government, which is important, certainly, that we do have, the average 
citizen so often , it seems - even though MLAs are at their disposal - regrettably, find themselves 
powerless to obtain information which is important to them or to their families. 

1 am opposed , Mr. Speaker, to the reference of any matters pertaining to the obtaining of 
information through theccourts; the courts are not accountable insofar as the public is concerned. 
I do feel that there is a stronger case to be made for examining the role of a Legislative Committee 
in which matters referring to the inability of a citizen to obtain information could be referred to. 
So there may be, Mr. Speaker, some need to examine that particular area as to whether a citizen 
of the Province of Manitoba, having difficulty in obtaining information , should have added to the 
facilities which are available to him, a Committee of the Legislature or some other politically formed 
committee that's accountable to the electorate to deal with the problems at hand . That is the only 
context in which, Mr. Speaker, I see anything worthy of this legislation , whether there are other 
facilities that could be added to the present facilities of the Legislature in order to better assist 
the citizen out in the street beyond those that are presently available. 

So, Mr. Speaker, only on that basis, and so that we are given an opportunity to evaluate and 
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to study thoroughly the principles of the bill before us to see whether there is any additional facility 
of that nature that could be developed for this Legislative Chamber, I would move, seconded by 
the Honourable Member for Seven Oaks, that Bill 6 entitled The Freedom of Information Act be 
not now read a second time, but be read this day six months hence. 

l. MOTION presented and carried. 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for Fort Rouge. 

MR. AXWORTHY: Mr. Speaker, I wonder if I might have a chance just to close debate on this 
particular bill , before the vote is taken. 

MR. SPEAKER: May I point out to the honourable member that there is an amendment to the 
motion which now makes the debate wide open again. The Honourable Member for Fort 
Rouge.$ 

MR. AXWORTHY: Mr. Speaker, I move, seconded by the Member for Winnipeg Centre, that debate 
be adjourned. 

MOTION presented and carried. 

MR. SPEAKER: Bill No. 32, An Act to Amend The Human Rights Act - the Honourable Member 
for Pembina. 

MR. ORCHARD: Stands, Mr. Speaker. 

MR. SPEAKER: Bill No. 33, The Venture Investment and Research and Development Corporation 
Registration Act - the Honourable Minister of Industry and Commerce. 

MR. BANMAN: Stand, Mr. Speaker. 

BILL NO. 49 - AN ACT TO AMEND THE ELECTORAL DIVISIONS ACT 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for St. Matthews. 

MR. ALBERT DRIEDGER: Mr. Speaker, by leave of the Member for St. Matthews, I'd like to speak 
to the bill. 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for Emerson. 

MR. RIEDGER: Mr. Speaker, l'dlike to make a few comments on Bill No. 49. I have a few problems 
in my mind with this bill. I am as such not opposed to representation by population, and this is 
the area that the Member for St. Vital stressed very strongly. The one thing that he overlooked, 
in my mind, is the representation by way of need, and I wonder why, actually, the Member for St. 
Vital presented this bill at this time. I personally don't believe that he would be using this as a 
political ploy, not him! 

I realize the fact that there is definite discrepancies in population within the various constituencies. 
I believe there's approximately six seats in Winnipeg that have had substantial increases in eligible 
voters, and the rural areas with the exception of possibly one or two seats there's been an increase 
in almost all the ridings. In the city, I believe, there's approximately seven seats that have decreases 
in eligible voters so we have to agree that there is need for redistribution. However, at the present 
time we have the machinery set up where every ten years redistribution is looked at with a varying 
fact of 25 percent at the present time, and in presenting the bill I'm not convinced that there's 
a need to have this variation brought down to 10 percent. 

I have a concern when I mentionnneed. I'd like to illustrate the representation of a rural number 
and I'd like to use my own riding as an example and maybe compare that to an urban seat. 

In the constituency of Emerson, as a representative there, I average between five and six phone 
calls a day, seven days a week, and between two and three letters daily. -(Interjection)- Aside 
from that the rural member gets involved with municipalities, the various problems within 
municipalities, with highways, with drainage, drought, floods, ·and cases like yesterday - the 
tornadoes which would not necessarily be isolated to rural areas. Rural members get involved in 
community organizations; they get involved in agricultural organizations; in general, Mr. Speaker, 
they act as an ombudsman for the residents of a rural riding. When people are in trouble in the 
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rural ridings whom do they phone in most cases? They phone the ru ral MLA. In order to make 
contact with some of the government departments, your bureaucracy of government, they find it 
simpler to phone the rural MLA and have him give the guidelines and information that is 
required . 

Let 's compare the cost of maintaining a rural riding versus an urban riding. My constituency 
covers approximately 130 miles long by about 40 miles wide. I have invitations every free evening 
and weekend to attend functions whereas in the urban ridings it seems to be substantially less 
involvement. Compare a farmer living on 320 acres of land representing maybe two votes compared 
to a city block or an apartment block where you have a hundred or a couple of hundred people 
living in there. The needs of the urban dweller - if there's problems he refers to the the city councillor 
as such. The utilities are covered pretty well by the city councillors. The rural members get faced 
with all these directly and you have two votes versus a couple of hundred. 

I personally feel that this bill has been presented as a political ploy. It is my interpretation that 
it is intended to create a rift between urban and rural members to a degree, and I also believe 
that it is to the advantage of the members opposite to have a bill of this nature passed because 
you have very little following in the rural area, and if there could be a decrease in the seats in 
the rural area it would in my mind be an advantage to you possibly. If this bill was presented in 
all sincerity I cannot see where your four northern members are supporting this bill and I understand 
that it is the intention of the members opposite to support this bill in bloc. You 're all going to be 
voting for it. And if the members from the north are supporting this bill what they are actually doing 
is creating an injustice to their representatives out there because they would be reducing 
representation . -(Interjection)- Based on that because what we're attempting to do here is to 
reduce rural representation not based on need but rep by pop as such , and I want to encourage 
all members in the House here to defeat this bill based on that. 

Thank you very much. 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for Selkirk . 

MR. PAWLEY: I wonder if I could just address a question of clarification to the Member for Emerson. 
Did I hear the Member for Emerson correctly to suggest that in all but two rural ridings there had 
been an increase in population , 1966 to 1976? 

MR. DRIEDGER: I referred to eligible voters and I said approximately two, yes. 

MR. SPEAKER: The bill will be allowed to stand in the name of the Honourable Member for St. 
Matthews. The Honourable Member for Kildonan. 

MR. FOX: I'd like to note a change in respect to Municipal Affairs Committee - to take off the 
name of the Honourable Member for St. George and add the Honourable Member for 
Wellington . 

MR. SPEAKER: That change in the Municipal Affairs Committee is, that agreed? (Agreed) The 
Honourable Member for Gladstone. 

MR. FERGUSON: Thank you , Mr. Speaker. I also have a change on the Municipal Affairs Committee. 
It will be the Member for Roblin , for the Member for Swan River. 

MR. SPEAKER: Is that change agreeable? (Agreed) 
Second reading Public Bills. Bill 59, An Act to amend the Milk Control 

MR. BOYCE: Stand . 

RESOLUTION NO. 7 - MUNICIPAL COUNCIL AGREEMENTS 
FIRE PROTECTION AND AMBULANCE SERVICE 

MR. SPEAKER: Resoluti on No. 7. The Honourable Member for Churchill. 

MR. COWAN: Thank you , Mr. Speaker. I'm somewhat hesitant to rise to speak on this resolution 
at this time because the issue is apparently resolved if we are to believe what the news media have 
told us, and I do in this case believe them quite completely. I'm also somewhat hesitant because 
the Minister of Municipal Affairs, a key figure in the drama that has unfolded for the past couple 
of weeks, is not present but I am sure he will have opportunity to peruse these remarks in Hansard 
and on that basis we'll continue. As most members know ... 
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MR. FOX-. .. would introduce his motion before he speaks to it. 

MR. SPEAKER: Order please. I believe the honourable member should introduce the resolution 
before he speaks to it. 

MR. COWAN: My apologies, Mr. Speaker and members of the House. 
I move, seconded by the Member for Flin Flon, 
Whereas the government takes the position that the Municipal Act does not allow for a municipality 

to enter into an agreement with a self-organized association for the purpose of that association 
providing fire protection and ambulance services to that municipality, and 

Whereas the government also takes the position that the Municipal Act does not allow for an 
individual to sit as a member of the Municipal Council and at the same time accept remuneration 
from that same municipality for fire fighting and ambulance service provided by that individual, 
and 

Whereas individuals may zish to serve their communities in both capacities, and there may be 
a demonstratable need for their services in both capacities, and 

Whereas rigid interpretation of certain sections of the Municipal Act is creating certain hardships 
in many municipalities, 

Therefore Be It Resolved that the government consider the advisability of taking such steps as 
are necessary to facilitate a Municipal Council entering into an agreement with an association 
organized for the purpose of providing that municipality with fire protection and ambulance services 
and to further facilitate the Municipal Council being able to receive remuneration as a participant 
in that association. 

MOTION prented. 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for Churchill. MR. COWAN: Thank you, Mr. Speaker, 
and again my apologies for that oversight. To be perfectly honest, Mr. Speaker, to stand and speak 
to this resolution at this time after it has seemingly been resolved, seems somewhat anti-climatic 
to myself and I'm sure it seems anti-climatic to many of the members here. And if it weren't for 
the seriousness of the mistakes that have been made or for the negative attitude that the government, 
or at least the Minister of Municipal Affairs displayed , or if it weren't for the seriousness of the 
near tragedy that was barely - and I say barely - at the last moment averted more through the 
perseverance of the Gillam Firefighters, I might add, than through the efforts of the Minister or the 
Department of Municipal Affairs . If it weren't for that, Mr. Speaker, and if it weren't for the fact 
that there are many other municipalities that could fall prey to this same sort of mismanagement 
I would not speak at this moment. This would have been considered by myself a simple mistake, 
a non-issue of little consequence and of less impact. Instead, because of all that, Mr. Speaker, it 
stands as just one more example of how that government perceives northern Manitoba, of how 
that government treats northern Manitoba, ignorant of the special qualities and therefore of the 
special needs of the communities such as Gillam; unable, or if able, at least unwilling to accept 
the facts of life of northern living. 

It is hard to determine exactly what happened to create this situation. We do not know, or at 
least I'm not party to what happened in the Department of Municipal Affairs or what happened in 
the Minister's office, or what happened in the LGD offices in Gillam, that have precipitated this what 
can only be termed a colossal misunderstanding and a dangerous misunderstanding -
misunderstanding of the Municipal Act, a misunderstanding of the resolve of the Gillam firefighters, 
and a tragic misunderstanding of the seriousness of the situation that the Minister put the Gillam 
firefighters and the residents of Gillam into. 

And while it may be hard to determine the whys, while it may be hard to determine what motivated 
all this, it is easy to follow the deterioration of the situation. 

It was in early 1977 that following the lead of several other fire brigades throughouttthe province 
and in response to a need for better discipline among the Gillam firefighters, and also for the reason 
of that brigade wanting to become more active in community affairs, the Gillam firefighters requested 
the council to pay them in a lump sum as an association as had been done throughout the province 
in other municipalities. 

I might at this point interject that there was nothing unusual about volunteer firefighters getting 
paid for their service even if it is a concept the Minister has had some trouble with in the last few 
days. He's been unable to recognize the suitability, the fairness of such a system in northern 
Manitoba. They are not paid a salary, Mr. Speaker. They are not paid a retainer. They are paid 
strictly according to their service to the community. They, in fact , receive $10.00 for every training 
session they attend. They receive $20.00 for every fire that they fight and they receive $20.00 for 
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every ambulance call that they, as an association or members of that association, answer. And all 
in all I would suggest that is not so much remuneration for the 24-hour service that they provide 
to that community, for not going out to the lake on the weekends when they have to be in the 
community to be on call , for not going out on trips on weeks that they have to be in the community 
for call . Their time is tied up even if there are no calls. Their time is tied up and for that, Mr. Speaker, 
there is no payment and quite frankly I don't begrudge them their few dollars. As a matter o fact 
I'm highly appreciative for their efforts, and living myself in a community that is serviced by a volunteer 
fire brigade I know the value and the service that they give, quite freely, without compunction, as 
true volunteers , and as I said I am highly appreciative of that service and their efforts. 

So in 1977, the fire brigade requested that instead of being paid as individuals for their individual 
services, that they be paid as an association . They made a request to the Council and the Council 
obliged , as it assumed it was empowered to do under Section 283, Clause 2, of The Municipal Act, 
which states, Mr. Speaker, that any municipality may enter into an agreement with any othe 
municipality, or any other person, for provid ing or obtaining fire protection. So in light of that section, 
the Council passed a resolution ; the firefighters were paid as an association and there were a number 
of reasons for them wishing to be paid in that manner. 

The first reason was that it helped to maintain internal fire brigade discipline. The association 
was then responsible for passing the money on to the firefighters. So we have a case where a 
firefighter may have come to a fire and fought that fire, and therefore been entitled to the $20.00 
that that firefighter is enti t led to for fighting a fire, but for whatever number of reasons might have 
occurred, refused to help clean up afterwards, refused perhaps to roll up the hoses, or thaw the 
fire hydrants, or clean up the machinery. For that refusal , or if that firefighter missed three training 
sessions in a row, that fire fighter would forfeit his full quarterly pay, as they are paid in quarterly 
time references, four times a year. And that money, that quarterly pay for that firefighter would 
remain with the association . In that manner, the association had some control over its membership, 
some degree of internal discipline, and it could ensure that even the most tedious chores were shared 
and nobody lost anything that was legitimately coming to them because they were all party to that 
agreement. The LGD was billed only for those that actually answered the fire call, and for those 
that actually fought the fire, and the firefighters who fulfilled their full responsibility as determined 
by them as an association, were paid. That's the first reason for wanting to be paid as an 
association. 

The second reason is that it enabled the association to fund community projects. The money 
that was held for disciplinary reasons, and also the firefighters as an association agreed that they 
would not accept money for their ambulance calls, that that money would go directly into the 
association. That money was then given to victims of burn-outs for clothing or food , or as a grub 
stake in their time of need, it was used for community needs, T -shirts or sweat shirts for minor 
hockey, equipment, and it was also used to start a fund for the purpose of building a fire hall in 
that community, a fund of which there is $2,000 presently in that fund in the Community of Gillam. 
And that money, Mr. Speaker, is supplemented by Bingos and other fund raising so that when they 
have raised enough money, they may indeed have a fire brigade. 

So obviously it was not whim or self- indulgence for the fire fighters wanting to be paid as an 
association . There was nothing ulterior about their motives, and I have to stress that, there was 
nothing ulterior. It was nothing more, nor nothing less, than a system developed to meet their needs, 
so we have to ask ourselves what went wrong. Well , as near as I can tell, and as near as they 
can tell , because the Municipal Act did not allow for an LGD to pay an association for fire service, 
because that clause that I had read before, did not specifically state the word association, someone 
in Winnipeg, someone I would suggest that knew nothing about Gillam and probably cared even 
less, imposed their bureaucratic will against all good reason , and against all good sense. Somewhere, 
someone decided that they could not be paid as an association, and since Municipal Affairs is 
responsible for countersigning the cheques, they sent back individual cheques to the fire fighters, 
instead of a lump sum payment as had been done in the past , and they did so without consulting, 
without asking, or without discussing , to find out why that system had been developed in the first 
place. 

Then the Minister of Municipal Affairs, instead of investigating the situation as I would have hoped 
he had , instead of contacting the Gillam fire fighters as I would have hoped he had , blindly and 
ignorantly - and excuse the pun - fueled their fire. His rigidity, his seemingly cavalier attitude, 
did more to push this to the brink than any other single factor . And I would not stand here and 
be so harsh on the Minister if he had not, in his position , been so harsh to the Gillam fire 
fighters. 

But there was a second issue at hand here also, Mr. Speaker. The Minister, the department, 
refused to pay fire fighters who also served as counsellors for the community. Again they refused 
to recognize the special needs, the special circumstances, of that northern community, one that 
applies not only to that community but many othernorthern isolated communities. Gillam is a small 
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community. It has 2,500 residents, and a great number of those who reside in that town are commonly 
referred to as " boomers" . They have gone to Gillam for the big money that can be made by hard 
work and long hours, and they do 't have great deals of spare time to allow them to become active 
in community affairs, so it is not surprising nor is it unusual , nor is it questionable, that those that 
are community-minded , would have to serve in more than one capacity, to serve both as fire fighters 
and as councillors. 

,_ And had the Minister taken the time to acquaint himself with the problem, he would have soon 
discovered that the motive of those serving the community in both capacities, was indeed sincere. 
They were not forcing anyone else out of a position, or possible position, but they were filling a 
vacuum, and they were entitled to the same remunerations as others receive for those efforts. Instead, 
he and the department withheld their pay and they did so incorrectly, I would suggest, Mr. Speaker, 
for in their zeal to make a point , they must have read only part of the Act, they must have stopped 
at Section 47, that dealing with the disqualification of councillors, " disallows a councillor from entering 
into a contract with the LGD, or municipality. " Smugly putting forth their case, they cited both section 
and clause, self-righteous, and full of - I might suggest - pompous indignation, they made their 
caee. 

But had they only taken the time, taken effort to resolve, rather than to dictate, they would have 
read Section 49, Clause 2, which approved for certain contracts with councillors, that allowed the 
fire fighters to be paid both as fire fighters and as councillors, and even lays out the procedures 
and the manners in which that remuneration must take place. The fire fighters knew of that clause, 
Mr. Speaker, I knew of that clause. Our mistake, a collective mistake, was assuming that the Minister 
was well enough acquainted with The Municipal Act to know that clause, and because he didn't, 
or because he refused to recognize it, he walked around with his feet in his mouth for two weeks, 
and came far too close to forc ing a tragedy on the Community of Gillam, and had it not been for 
the good sense of the fire brigade and their willingness to compromise, in spite of his insistence 
and his obstinance, in their selfless extensions of the resignation deadline, in the face of his 
callousness, they would ntt have saved the community. 

MR. SPEAKER: The hour being 5:30, I am leaving the Chair and the House will resume in Committee 
at 8:00 o'clock. When the member next speaks on this, he will have six minutes remaining . 
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